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VISION STATEMENT, MISSION STATEMENT AND Annual Report 2024
CORPORATE STRATEGY

Vision Statement

To compete in tough and competitive market, focusing on "Satisfaction"
of customers, and stakeholders with challenging spirit and flexibility,
striving hard to make profit, creating value for our customers and to
continue as a successful Company.

Mission Statement

To manage and operate the company in a manner that allows growth
and profitability without high risk for stakeholders and the company by
offering quality product to our customers, while striving to improve
our product to meet our customers needs.

Corporate Strategy

Our Corporate Strategy and objectives for the future are to find new
and improved means of cost reduction, fuel economy and to acquire
advanced manufacturing capabilities to support our product development
efforts and product line expansion and stand ready to leverage our
debts and be responsive to the changing economic scenario. We believe
in harnessing the inherent strengths of available human resource and
materials to the utmost and a commitment for building a solid foundation
poised for sustainable growth for the long-term benefit of our
shareholders and our employees.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING Annual Report 2024

Notice is hereby given that the 43rd Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Members of FECTO CEMENT LIMITED
will be held on Monday, October 28, 2024, at 12:00 noon at Royal Rodale Sports and Recreational Complex situated
at TC-V, 34th Street, Khayaban-e-Sehar, Phase V, Ext, Defence Housing Authority, Karachi to transact the following

Ordinary business:
1) To confirm the minutes of last AGM held on Saturday October 28, 2023.

2) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June
30, 2024, together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon.

3) To appoint auditors for the year ending June 30, 2025, and fix their remuneration. Present auditors M/s.
Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafig, Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible have offered themselves
for the re-appointment.

4) To elect six (6) directors as fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the provisions
of Section 159 (1) of the Companies Act, 2017 for a term of three (3) years commencing from November
01, 2024. Mr. Rohail Ajmal being nominee of Saudi Pak Industrial and Agriculture Investment Company
Limited is not subject to retirement/election hence after this election, overall strength of the Board will
be seven (7) as required by Section 154(4) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Names of retiring directors are as follows:

(i) Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto (iv) Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan
(ii) Mr. Khalid Yacoob (v) Mr. Muhammad Anwar Habib
(iii) Mr. Aamir Ghani (vi) Ms. Saira lbrahim Bawani

5) To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

(ABDUL WAHAB)
COMPANY SECRETARY
Karachi: October 07, 2024

Notes:
1) Closure of Share Transfer Books

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, October 19, 2024, to Monday,
October 28, 2024 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order by our Shares Registrar FD Registrar
Services (Private) Limited 17th Floor Saima Trade Centre, Tower I. |. Chundrigar Road, Karachi by the close
of business on Friday, October 18, 2024, shall be treated as being in time for the purpose of attending and
voting at the AGM.

2) Participation in Annual General Meeting (AGM), via physical presence including through proxy
A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as
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a proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her. An instrument appointing a proxy must be received
at the Registered Office of the Company not later than forty-eight hours before the time of holding the
Meeting. The proxy shall produce his/her CNIC or passport to prove his/her identity. CDC Account Holders
will have to further follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000, issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

3) Participation in AGM through electronic means:

a.  Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its Circular No. 4 dated February 15, 2021
has directed the listed companies to ensure the participation of members in general meeting through
electronic means as a regular feature in addition to holding physical meetings.

b The members who wish to attend the meeting through video-link are hereby requested to share
following information for obtaining video-link and login credentials, with the Company Secretary at
email address: abdul_wahab@fectogroup.com at earliest but no later than 48 hours before the time

of AGM:
Full Name CNIC No Folio/ CDC No. of Cell No. E-mail
Account No. Shares Held Address
c. Members will be registered, after necessary verification as per the above requirement and will be

provided a video-link by the Company via email.

d. Only those members will be accepted at the AGM via video-link whose names match the details
shared with the Company for registration.
e. In accordance with section 132(2) of the Act, if the Company receives consent from members

holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding, residing in a geographical location to participate
in the meeting through video conference at least seven (7) days prior to the date of AGM, the
Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in
that city. To avail this facility a request is to be submitted addressed to the Company Secretary at
the following address:

Fecto Cement Limited
60-C, Khayaban-e-Shahbaz, DHA Phase VI, Karachi

4) E- voting and Postal Ballot

It is hereby notified that pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 and its amendments
notified vide SRO 2192(1)/2022 dated December 5, 2022, members will be allowed to exercise their right
to vote, in the AGM, in accordance with the conditions mentioned in aforesaid regulations. The Company
shall provide its members with the following options for voting, in case voting is required under Companies
Act, 2017 in respect of agenda item no.4 of the notice:

i. E-voting Procedure

a. Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the Company
who have their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail addresses available in the register
of members of the Company within due course. Members who intend to exercise their right of
vote through E-Voting shall provide their valid cell numbers and e-mail addresses on or before
October 18, 2024 at the email address mentioned in clause b of note 3 above.

b. The web address, login details, will be communicated to members via email.
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Identity of the members intending to cast vote through e-Voting shall be authenticated through authentication
for login.

ii. Postal Ballot

a. Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot, which shall be circulated to members
at least seven (7) days before the meeting and will also be uploaded on the website of the Company.

b.  The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper along with copy of Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post at Plot # 60-
C, Khayaban-e-Shahbaz, Phase VI, Defence Housing Authority Karachi-75500 (Attention of the
Company Secretary) one day before the AGM i.e. by Friday, October 25, 2024, before 5:30 p.m. The
signature on the ballot paper shall match with the signature on CNIC. A postal ballot received after
this time / date shall not be considered for voting.

Intimation for Change in Address

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify any change in their address to our share
registrar immediately. Members holding shares in CDS system are requested to have their addresses updated
with participant or CDC Investor Account Service.

Availability of Financial Statements and Reports

The Company has circulated annual audited financial statements to its members through email at provided
registered email addresses. However, printed copy of the above referred statements will be provided to
the members upon their request. Request form is available on the website of the company.

Further, in accordance with section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with SRO 389(1)/2023 dated
March 21,2023 and SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 08,2014, the above referred statements have also
been uploaded on the website of the Company which can be downloaded by using following weblink and
QR enabled code:

https://fectogroup.com/financials/

Statement of Material Facts Under Section 166(3) of the Companies Act, 2017
Agenda item 4 - Election of Directors

This Statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the Ordinary Business as described in the Notice
of the AGM of the Company. The term of office of the current directors of the Company will expire on
October 28, 2024. In accordance with Section 159(1) of the Act, the Board of Directors have fixed the
number of Directors to be elected at the AGM at six (06) to hold the office of director for a period of three
(3) years commencing from the date of the AGM. Independent Directors shall be selected in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
and the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors) Regulations, 2018. Accordingly, in
compliance with the provisions of Regulation 7A of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019, Election of Directors will be held separately for the following three categories:
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S. No. Categories No. of Seats
Female Director 01
2. Independent Directors 02
3. Other Directors 03
TOTAL 06

In order to safeguard the interest of the minority shareholders, any member can send his/her nomination
for contesting the election in any of above-mentioned categories. Any person who seeks to contest the
election of the office of director, whether they are a retiring director or otherwise, shall submit to the
Company Secretary at the Registered Office address Plot # 60-C, Khayaban-e-Shahbaz, Phase VI, Defence
Housing authority, Karachi, not later than fourteen (14) days before the date of AGM, the following
documents:

Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for the election of directors as per Section 159(3) of
the Act, and consent to act as a director on Form 9 as prescribed under the Act, and the Companies
Regulations, 2024. (Any person contesting the election of directors must be a Member of the Company at
the time of filing his/her consent unless such person is representing a Member which is not a natural
person.)

A signed declaration confirming that:
a. He/she is aware of his/her duties and powers under the Act, the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate

Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company and other relevant laws and regulations.

b. He/she is not ineligible to become a director of a listed company under the provisions of the Act, the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and other applicable laws/
regulations.
3. A detailed profile along with his/her office address for placement on the Company's website as required

under SRO 1196 (1)/2019 dated October 03, 2019.
4. Detail of other directorships held.

5. Copy of valid CNIC or Passport (in case of a foreign national) along with NTN and Folio Number/CDC Account
or Sub Account number.

6. The following additional documents are required to be submitted by the candidates intending to contest
the election as an independent director:

a. Declaration of independence under Regulation 6(3) of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations,2019.

b. Undertaking on non-judicial stamp paper that he/she meets the requirements of Regulation 4(1) of
the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors) Regulations, 2018.

All the notices received for the category of Independent Director, shall be subject to due diligence by the Company
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as prescribed under Section 166 of the Act and 7A of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.

The final list of candidates contesting the election will be circulated not later than seven (7) days before
the date of the AGM in terms of Section 159(4) of the Act. The website of the Company will be updated
with the required information and Directors' profile.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW Annual Report 2024
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

On Board's Overall Performance Under Section 192(4) of the Companies Act, 2017
ECONOMIC LANDSCAPE & COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE

During the financial year under review global growth slowed down on account of high interest rates to deal with
inflation and geopolitical tensions contributing to economic uncertainty and Pakistan has not been an exception.
Rapid tariff adjustments and tightening fiscal regime for improving tax to GDP ratio to qualify for IMF program
coupled with high interest rates did not fare well for the economic growth. Consequently, local sales volumes of
the Cement Industry decelerated by around 5% and players resorted to export markets to maintain the volumes
with an overall meagre growth of 1.60%.

Despite the challenges the Company strengthened its footprint in the local market and achieved growth of 12.94%
in volumes. High energy costs and interest rates and inflationary trend continued to pose challenges resulting in
inflation driven growth in sales prices. However, with favorable coal prices, cost optimization measures, stringent
working capital management, higher capacity utilization and rationalization of useful life of its plant and machinery
Company was able to achieve Profit Before Tax and after WPPF of Rs. 748 million for the year. High incidence of
tax charge diluted the earnings leading to Profit After Tax of Rs. 317million. The Company will continue to follow
the strategy of further improving the operational efficiencies, customer focus and cost optimization for sustainable
performance.

BOARD'S OVER ALL PERFORMANCE

The Board of Directors (The "Board") of Fecto Cement Limited (The "Company") complies with all the requirements
set out in the Companies Act, 2017, the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (The
"Code") and the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange (The "Rule Book") where the Company is listed, with
respect to the composition, procedures and meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees. In compliance
with the Code, the Company conducts an annual evaluation of the Board's performance to ensure its effectiveness
in achieving the Company's objective. The purpose of this evaluation is also to identify areas requiring improvement
with appropriate action plans developed to address them.

For the purpose of Board evaluation, a set of comprehensive criteria has been developed. The Board has recently
completed its annual self-evaluation for the year ended June 30, 2024, and | report that the overall performance
of the Board measured on the basis of approved criteria for the year was satisfactory. This evaluation is based on
several key components critical to the Board's role in helping the Company achieve its objective:

1. Diversity and Mix: The Board members effectively bring the diversity to the Board and its committees and
constitute a mix of independent and non-executive directors with a female representation on the Board. The
non-executive and independent directors were equally involved in all key matters and decisions of the Board
and their respective committees. The Board members have adequate skills, experience, and knowledge to
manage the affairs of the Company.

2. Engagement in strategic planning: Board has a clear understanding of the stakeholders (shareholders, customers,
employees, vendors, society at large) whom the Company serves. The Board has a strategic vision of how the
organization should be evolving over the next three to five years. Further, the Board has spent sufficient time
on strategy formulation, and it has set annual goals and targets for the management in all major performance
areas.

3. Diligence: The Board members diligently performed their duties and thoroughly reviewed, discussed, and
approved business strategies, corporate objectives, plans, budgets, financial statements, and other reports. It
received clear and succinct agendas and supported written material in sufficient time prior to board and

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 9
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committee meetings. The board met frequently enough to adequately discharge its responsibilities.

4. Monitoring of organization's business activities: The Board remained updated with respect to the achievement
of the Company's objectives, goals, strategies, and financial performance through regular presentations by the
management, internal and external auditors, and other independent consultants. The Board provided appropriate
direction and oversight on a timely basis.

5. Governance and Control Environment: The Board has effectively set the tone-at-the-top, by putting in place
a transparent and robust system of governance. This is reflected by setting up an effective control environment,
compliance with best practices of corporate governance and by promoting ethical and fair behavior across the
company.

| extend my heartfelt appreciation to all our stakeholders for their unwavering support and trust in the Board. |

also thank our CEO and Management team for their dedication and professionalism in executing the Board's Vision
to continue as a successful company.

AAMIR GHANI
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Karachi: October 07, 2024
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Dear Members

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present before you the Annual Report of your Company along with
the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2024.

This report has been prepared in accordance with Section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (‘'The Regulations') and will be submitted to the shareholders
at the 43rd Annual General Meeting ('fAGM') of the Company to be held on October 28, 2024.

OVERVIEW

The year witnessed economic challenges, including inflation, particularly the rising energy costs, and high interest
rates which resulted in lower growth. Economic volatility and disequilibrium in tax regime has impacted on the
overall cost of doing business. The currency remained relatively stable due to controls over imports and support
from remittances and inflows from foreign debt.

Your Company's strategy to focus on enhancing efficiencies, cost optimization and customer centric approach has
led to positive results for the year in spite of the challenging economic environment.

INDUSTRY PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, overall dispatches of industry increased by 1.60% with total sales volume of 45.29
million tons as against 44.58 million tons of last year, driven by a surge in export sales by 55.71% reaching 7.10
million tons up from 4.57 million tons last year. However, local sales volumes of the industry declined by 4.58%
and reached 38.19 million tons down from 40.02 million tons the previous year.

The overall sales volume of plants located in the North dropped to 33.00 million tons as compared to 33.85 million
tons last year, witnessing a decline of 2.51%. Local sales volume of plants located in the North dropped to 31.55
million tons from 32.78 million tons last year i.e. a decline of 3.77%, whereas exports increased to 1.46 million tons
as compared to 1.07 million tons i.e. an increase of 36.23%.

Total sales volume of plants located in the South increased to 12.29 million tons from 10.73 million tons i.e. an
increase of 14.53%. Local sales volume of plants located in the South decreased to 6.64 million tons as compared
to 7.24 million tons last year i.e. a decline of 8.25%, whereas exports sales significantly increased to 5.65 million
tons as compared to 3.50 million tons last year i.e. an increase of 61.67%.

PRODUCTION AND SALES

The Company's production and dispatches for the year compared to previous year are as follows:

TONS
2024 2023 Change in %

Production

Clinker 651,048 632,116 3.00

Cement 724,209 646,530 12.01
Dispatches

Local 712,769 619,849 14.99

Export 12,284 22,107 (44.43)
Total 725,053 641,956 12.94

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 11
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Increase in production volumes was to meet the customer demand, optimize capacity utilization and reduce per
unit fixed costs.

During the year your Company's market share among plants located in the Northern region increased by 15.79%,
rising from 1.90% last year to 2.20% this year. This growth reflects the Company's strengthened position in the local
market.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Following is the comparison of financial results of the Company for the year under review with last year

Rupees in '000' except EPS
2024 2023 Change in %
Net sale - Local 10,767,088 8,432,393 27.69
Net sale - export 141,030 249,790 (43.54)
Total Net Sale 10,908,118 8,682,183 25.64
Cost of sales 9,478,553 8,369,763 13.25
Gross Profit 1,429,565 312,420 357.58
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 788,302 (172,929) -
Profit/ (Loss) after taxation 317,323 (133,245) -
Earnings/ (Loss) Per Share 6.33 (2.66) -

SALES REVENUE

During the year under review, the overall sales volume of the Company increased to 725,054 tons from 641,956
tons last year i.e. an increase of 12.94% which resulted in an increase in sales revenue by 25.64% i.e. from Rs. 8,682
million to Rs. 10,908 million. Cost inflation resulted in an increase in selling prices in the domestic market. Improved
retention prices also contributed to the sales growth.

Contribution of local sales volumes in overall sales volume increased from 96.56% to 98.31%. Export sales volumes
of the Company decreased by 44.43% i.e. from 22,107 tons to 12,285 tons and in line its revenue decreased by
43.54% i.e. from 249.79 million to 141.03 million. Volumes of export sales remained subdued due to less attractive
prices in the international markets.

PROFITABILITY

The cost of sales of the Company during the year under review increased by 13.25%, primarily driven by volume
growth of 12.94%, high energy costs and inflationary trend which was offset to some extent by favorable coal
prices, cost optimization and efficiency initiatives and better capacity utilization leading to a gross profit margin
of 13.11% as compared to 3.60% during last year.

Administrative expenses and Distribution costs increased by 12.72% mainly due to an increase in salaries and wages.

During the year the Company engaged an independent foreign consultant to assess the remaining useful life of its
plant and machinery leading to the assessment of useful life of 25 years instead of last assessed life of 7 to 23.5
years in the year 2007 which resulted in reduction in depreciation cost by Rs.174.77 million.
Finance costs (net of amortization of government grants) were reduced by 9.52% over last year primarily driven
by better working capital management leading to decline in borrowing levels by around 20% at year-end as compared

to last year-end. <Eflo
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Other income for the year decreased around 60% mainly due to no Capital Gain on sale of investment property
(last year Rs.77.77 million) and mark up on Term finance Certificates not accrued during the year as explained in
note 19.3 of the Financial Statements.

The Company achieved Profit Before Tax and after WPPF of Rs. 748 million for the year as compared to Loss before
levies and taxation of Rs. 172.92 million last year. However, the incidence of minimum tax exceeding normal tax
and super tax diluted earnings by Rs. 143 million i.e. around 19% of Profit Before Tax and after WPPF for the year
leading to Profit After Tax of Rs. 317 million which translated into earnings per share of Rs. 6.33 as against loss per
share of Rs. 2.66 last year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES

The Company is exposed to certain inherent risks and uncertainties related to the environments in which it works
and its operations may affect due to such risks and uncertainties. We, however, consider following as key risks:

[ Significant competition in the market due to overcapacity in the sector and subdued demand.
° Disequilibrium in tax regime and impact of indirect taxation

® Volatility in prices of Coal and other inputs.

® High energy costs

In response your Company's management remains proactive in enhancing manufacturing efficiency and investing
in cost optimization measures. This strategic approach aims to reduce production costs while reinforcing our
commitment to sustainability.

IMPACT OF COMPANY'S BUSINESS ON ENVIRONMENT

The Company is cognizance of the fact that the business of manufacturing and selling cement involves emission
from the manufacturing process which could affect the area where its operations are conducted. Therefore,
Company maintains its manufacturing facilities to operate at permissible emission level in compliance with NEQ
standards. Plant of the Company is state of the art and meets all national and international standards of quality
control. The Company has installed a waste heat recovery power plant to re-use waste heat of the manufacturing
system and generates clean energy for its operations. The Company has also installed 5 MW Solar Power Plant at
its site to reduce electricity cost and its dependence on fossil fuel and is in the process assessing an increase in
power production from Solar.

In addition, your Company spends on maintaining gardens around its manufacturing premises in pursuance of its
sustainable and eco-friendly practices.

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY (ICT)

Realizing the importance of the information for business growth and decision-making Company has embarked
upon upgrading its legacy information system with an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system which is expected
to be completely operation in next financial year. In addition, Company has also upgraded its connectivity between
its various sites.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The fiscal space of the Government will remain under pressure due to low tax to GDP ratio which could lead to
further taxation measures affecting business activity and impacting overall demand for cement. Successful conclusion
of IMF program, declining fuel prices in international markets and lowering interest rates pose a silver lining.
However, continued political instability in the country and uncertainty on the geo-political front can have an adverse
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impact.

The management of the Company is alive with the expected challenges and remains committed to focus on product
quality, customer service, operational efficiencies and cost optimization to maintain the growth in topline and
bottom line.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of your Company are aware of their responsibilities under Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the Rule book of Pakistan Stock Exchange. Your Company has taken all necessary
steps to ensure good corporate governance and full compliance with the Code and we confirm the following:

1. The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

2. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained in accordance with requirements of
law;

3. Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before the
approval of the Board.

4. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

5. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of financial statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed and explained;

6. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;
7. There are no significant doubts about the company's ability to continue as a going concern;

8. Statement of the pattern of shareholding has been included as part of this Annual Report with shares
held by associated undertakings and related persons disclosed separately;

9. The value of Provident Fund Investments as per un audited accounts of Provident Fund Trust for the
year ended June 30, 2024 was Rs. 566 million (2023 Rs. 552 million per audited accounts.)

10. There is no outstanding statutory payment due on account of taxes, levies and charges except normal
and routine nature and as disclosed in attached financial statements.

Key operating and financial highlights for six years is annexed to this report.
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors of the Company has established an effective and efficient internal financial control system
to ensure effective conduct of company's operation, safeguarding of all assets and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and reliable and timely financial reporting. In house internal audit department is equipped with
suitable and qualified staff to continuously review the internal control system and its effectiveness. Internal audit
department is responsible to identify any weakness in the system in place by the Board and suggest any deviation,
its rectification and improvements in a timely manner to the Audit Committee which ultimately takes corrective
steps.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into during the year were on arm's length basis and duly approved by the
Audit Committee and the Board as required by the Act and relevant regulations. Detail of transactions entered into
with related parties is given in Note 41 to the financial statements and respective notes.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The diverse mix of gender, knowledge, expertise and skill sets of the members enhances the effectiveness of our
Board. Our Board composition represents the interests of all categories of shareholders and it consists of:

Independent Directors Khalid Yacoob

Aamir Ghani

Jamil Ahmed Khan
Mohammed Anwar Habib

Non-Executive Directors Rohail Ajmal
Saira Ibrahim Bawani (Female)
Executive Directors Mohammed Yasin Fecto

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year four (4) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each Director is given below:

Attended
Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto 3
Mr. Aamir Ghani
Mr. Rohail Ajmal
Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib
Mr. Khalid Yacoob
Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan
Ms. Saira Ibrahim Bawani

oA NBEN

Directors who could not attend the meetings were granted leave of absence.
REMUNERATION POLICY FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Company are non-executive directors except Chief Executive Officer. Remuneration to Chief
Executive Officer is approved by the Board of Directors in their meetings. Non-executive directors are paid
remuneration for attending Board and its committee meetings as per approved policy. The detail of remuneration
paid to Chief Executive Officer and non-executive directors is given in Note 40 to the financial statements.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Board of Directors of your Company has established Audit Committee of the Board in compliance with the
requirements the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance), Regulations, 2019 regulation no: 27. Term

of reference of the Committee was duly communicated to the members by the Board. Two members of the
committee are independent directors while Mr. Rohail Ajmal (nominee of Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 15
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Investment Co. Ltd.) is non-executive director.

During the year 4 (four) meetings of the Committee were held. Attendance by each member is given below:

Attended
Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Chairman 4
Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib Member 2
Mr. Rohail Ajmal Member 4

HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with the requirements of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance), Regulations, 2019
regulation no: 28, The Board of Directors has established this Committee comprising three members, of whom all
are independent Directors. Term of reference of the Committee was duly communicated to the members by the
Board. During the year 1(one) meeting of the Committee was held.

TRAINING PROGRAM OF DIRECTORS

Your Company takes a keen interest in the professional development of its Board members and regularly updates
its Board members with any changes in corporate laws or Code of corporate governance. It ensures that all the
Directors of the Board comply with the requirements of Directors Training Certification as such most of the Directors
have complied with same as per regulation no. 19 of the Code.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY

Your Company being a responsible corporate citizen always conscious to discharge its obligations towards the
people who work for its day and night, people around its work place and to the society as a whole. Few of the
highlights of the initiatives undertaken by the Company during the year were:

® Construction, renovation and maintaining a girl school in nearby village.

® Participation with local administration for cleaning of Khan poor Dam canal by providing cement and
manpower.

@ Provision of clean water to nearby village for which a reservoir and pipe line were constructed by the
Company. Company has also installed an electric pump for smooth supply of water.

® The Company donated an amount of Rs. 6.44 million for health, social welfare and education

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXECHEQURE

During the year your Company contributed around Rs. 2,520 million to national exchequers in terms of sales tax,
federal excise duty and income tax. The Company also brought in foreign exchange of around USD 0.5 MILLION
into the country by exporting cement. In addition, the Company also contributed to the national and provincial
exchequers as withholding agent for collection and deduction of income tax and sales from its vendors and employees
on behalf of revenue authorities.

ENTITY CREDIT RATING

Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has maintained ratings assigned to the Company as long-term rating of A-
and short term A2 with stable outlook.

'@ FECTO CEMENT LIMITED
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INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Company believes that its best assets are the one who work for it and constant efforts are made to provide them
all facilities. Hence, management employee relations have always been very cordial and no industrial unrest has
ever been witnessed in the company.

AUDITORS

Present auditors M/s. Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rahim, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have
offered them for re-appointment. The Audit Committee of the Board has also recommended their appointment
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2024 and Board would also like to endorse the
recommendations of the Audit Committee.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Statements showing the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2023 required Section 227(2)(f) of the Companies
Act, 2017 is annexed to this report.

APPROPRIATION

Company is pursuing policy of cash preservation to be able to handle uncertainties ahead, to finance the Capital
Expenditure for achieving efficiencies without additional borrowings and reduce the borrowings. Therefore, the
Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 07, 2024, has decided not to recommend payment of dividend
for the year.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Directors would like to place on record their appreciation for the valuable contribution of all stakeholders
including the employees for their dedication and hard work, customers and vendors for their unwavering support,

regulators for their continued support and guidance and financial institutions for the trust reposed on sponsors
and management which plays a pivotal role in the successful operational and financial performance of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Qo

MOHAMMED YASIN FECTO ROHAIL AJMAL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Karachi: October 07, 2024

P’&
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For Six Years from Year 2019 to Year 2024
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FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019
Quantity in Ton

Clinker:

- Production 651,048 632,116 618,559 734,323 599,016 593,312

- Capacity Utilization 72% 70% 69% 89% 72% 72%
Cement:

- Production 724,209 646,530 712,757 729,167 640,576 680,133

- Sales 725,054 641,956 712,644 731,069 641,450 682,612

Rupees in '000'

Financial Position
Assets Employed
Property, plant and equipment 2,951,117 2,708,837 3,067,900 2,270,083 1,792,313 1,895,270
Right of use assets 46,248 76,812 108,442 106,020 51,730 51,164
Investment Property 102,260 102,260 - - - -
Long term investments 327,720 401,511 330,850 318,009 284,350 319,650
Long term deposits 10,101 10,101 10,273 5,321 6,294 6,486
Long term loans and advances 40,126 8,466 8,776 6,722 10,757 12,606
Deferred tax asset - 113,586 - 29,821 - -
Current Assets 4,336,778 3,904,906 3,424,013 3,297,031 2,688,362 2,781,387
Total Assets 7,814,350 7,326,479 6,950,254 6,033,007 4,833,806 5,066,563
Financed By
Shareholders' Equity 3,861,686 3,596,755 3,750,774 3,467,062 3,508,011 4,331,567
Long-term liabilities
Long term financing 678,308 860,641 1,017,637 520,529 87,217 -
Lease liabilities 12,285 48,398 67,173 61,605 24,809 34,322
Deferred Grant Income 102,067 140,528 184,544 69,343 10,476 -
Deferred Liabilities 88,006 - 33,874 - 33,430 355,892
Current Liabilities 3,071,998 2,680,157 1,896,252 1,914,468 1,169,863 344,782
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,814,350 7,326,479 6,950,254 6,033,007 4,833,806 5,066,563
Turnover & Profit
Sales
Sales - Gross 14,863,390 11,549,441 9,243,510 7,059,214 5,437,681 6,654,725
Less : Excise duty (1,425,537) (1,040,271) (1,029,161) (1,014,506) (1,142,212) (924,475)
Sales tax (2,529,735) (1,826,987) (1,439,782) (1,083,333) (831,565) (989,754)
Sales - Net 10,908,118 8,682,183 6,774,567 4,961,375 3,463,904 4,740,496
Profitability
Gross Profit / (Loss) 1,429,565 312,420 873,621 287,499 (715,437) 594,303
EBITDA 1,192,198 421,572 786,507 150,898 (893,286) 255,354
EBIT 1,064,476 130,274 584,095 12,434 (1,005,673) 135,720
Profit / (Loss) before levies and tax 788,302 (172,929) 428,860 (63,381) (1,034,246) 130,343
Provision for levies and taxation (470,979) 39,684 (142,157) (3,906) 264,175 (41,368)
Profit / (Loss) after tax 317,323 (133,245) 286,703 (67,287) (770,071) 88,975
Cash Flow
Net Cash from / (used in) Operating

Activities 1,050,418 (194,635) 835,314 (259,341) (735,513) (9,607)
Net Cash (used in) / from Investing

Activities (262,473) 42,387 (873,374) (541,910) 56,134 (172,941)
Net Cash from / (used in) Financing

Activities (668,544) (237,301) 313,595 554,941 351,681 (125,901)
Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and

Bank Balance 119,401 (389,549) 275,535 (246,310) (327,698) (308,449)
Cash and Bank Balance at beginning

of the Year (523,667) (134,118) (409,653) (163,343) 164,355 472,804
Cash and Bank Balance at end of the Year (404,266) (523,667) (134,118) (409,653) (163,343) 164,355

'@ FECTO CEMENT LIMITED




ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL RATIOS
For Six Years from Year 2019 to Year 2024

Ratios Description

Profitability Ratios:

Gross Profit Margin

EBITDA Margin to Sales
EBIT Margin to Sales

Net Profit Margin

Return on Equity

Return on Capital Employed
Effective Tax Rate

Liquidity Ratios:

Current ratio

Quick / Acid test ratio

Cash to Current Liabilities
Cash from Operations to Sales

Activity / Turnover Ratios:
Inventory turnover ratio
No. of Days in inventory
Debtors turnover ratio

No. of Days in Receivables
Creditors turnover ratio
No. of Days in Creditors
Operating Cycle

Total Assets turnover ratio
Fixed Assets turnover ratio

Investment Valuation Ratios:

Earnings / (Loss) per share (EPS / (LPS))
Price / Earning ratio

Market value per share as on June 30
Breakup value per share

Price to book ratio

Dividend Yield

Dividend Payout ratio

Dividend Cover ratio

Capital Structure Ratios:

Financial leverage ratio

Net Borrowing / EBITDA

Debt to Equity Ratio

Av. Operating Working Capital to Sales Ratio
Interest Cover ratio

UoM

percent
percent
percent
percent
percent
percent
percent

times
times
times
times

times
days
times
days
times
days
days
times
times

rupees
times
rupees
rupees
percent
percent
percent
times

times
times
times
percent
times

FY 2024

13.11%
10.93%
9.76%
2.91%
8.22%
27.57%
-59.75%

141
0.28
0.09
0.10

4.99
73.18
34.88
10.47

6.62
55.16
28.48

1.40

3.64

6.33
3.10
29.72
76.99
38.60%
0.00%
0.00%

0.44

0.37
26:74
19.33%

3.85

FY 2023

3.60%
4.86%
1.50%
-1.53%
-3.70%
3.62%
-22.95%

1.46
0.22
0.07
(0.02)

5.41
67.49
78.24

4.66

8.31
43.95
28.21

1.19

3.12

(2.66)
(7.39)
19.90
71.71
27.75%
0.00%
0.00%

0.59
0.54
26:74
22.81%
0.43

FY 2022

12.90%
11.61%
8.62%
4.23%
7.64%
15.57%
-33.15%

1.81
0.27
0.07
0.12

4.05
90.21
113.90
3.20
7.40
49.30
44.12
0.97
2.13

5.72
343
19.62
74.78
26.24%
0.00%
0.00%

0.44
0.40
26:74
27.17%
3.76

Annual Report 2024

FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019
5.79% -20.65% 12.54%
3.04% -25.79% 5.39%
0.25% -29.03% 2.86%

-1.36% -22.23% 1.88%
-1.94% -21.95% 2.05%
0.36% -28.67% 3.13%
-6.16% 25.54% -31.74%
1.72 2.30 8.07
0.33 0.51 2.20
0.04 0.10 0.48
(0.05) (0.21) (0.002)
3.22 3.30 3.21
113.19 110.67 113.88
144.52 74.57 66.10
2.53 4.89 5.52
10.63 19.22 12.88
34.32 18.99 28.33
81.40 96.58 91.07
0.82 0.72 0.94
2.09 1.88 2.44
(1.34) (15.35) 1.77
(24.78) (1.36) 11.02
33.24 20.88 19.54
69.12 69.94 86.36

48.08% 29.85% 22.63%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

0.45 0.21 0.01
0.42 0.17 (0.03)
18:82 4:96 1:99
35.43% 50.43% 38.40%
0.16 (35.20) 25.24
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Particulars Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Total
Quantity in Ton
Clinker:
- Production 172,504 170,169 145,908 162,467 651,048
- Capacity Utilization 77% 76% 65% 72% 72%
Cement:
- Production 177,631 206,598 164,748 175,232 724,209
- Sales 176,691 205,497 165,643 177,223 725,054
----------------------- Rupees in '000" ---------=-=---=enmumo-
Sales - net 2,625,901 3,094,932 2,502,544 2,684,741 10,908,118
Cost of sales (2,286,044) (2,695,435) (2,360,154) (2,136,920) (9,478,553)
Gross profit / (loss) 339,857 399,497 142,390 547,821 1,429,565
Administrative expenses (92,434) (90,168) (78,129) (85,604) (346,335)
Distribution expenses (26,793) (28,330) (25,995) (26,020) (107,138)
Other operating income & expenses 25,451 6,259 36,810 19,864 88,384
(93,776) (112,239) (67,314) (91,760) (365,089)
Operating profit 246,081 287,258 75,076 456,061 1,064,476
Finance cost (74,655) (55,205) (73,859) (72,455) (276,174)
Profit before levies and tax 171,426 232,053 1,217 383,606 788,302
Levies and Taxation (82,173) (142,803) 30,140 (276,143) (470,979)
Profit after levies and tax 89,253 89,250 31,357 107,463 317,323

(W FECTO CEMENT LIMITED




GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION -
STAKEHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

GP MARGIN
15%
10% Q\ y
5% \
0%
oo \ /
\\ l/
-15%
0% \V4
-25%
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
NP MARGIN
10%
5%
0%
-5%
-10%
-15% \\/
-20% v
-25%
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
EBIT MARGIN
15%
10% .—
5% ‘
0% N i
% \ /
-10% \ I
-15% \ I
-20% \ I
-25%
-30% v
-35%
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Annual Report 2024

L5 B FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 23




Annual Report 2024

GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION -
STAKEHOLDERS’ INFORMATION
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION-
STAKE HOLDERS’ INFORMATION
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FREE CASH FLOWS

FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019

Rupees in '000'

Profit / (Loss) before taxation 788,302 (172,929) 428,860 (63,381) (1,034,246) 130,343
Adjustment for non-cash items 337,832 434,710 315,924 174,572 118,456 96,362
Working capital changes 112,890 (391,795) 119,485 (343,183) 266,577 (93,691)
Net Cash generated from / (used in) -
operating activities 1,239,024 (130,014) 864,269 (231,992) (649,213) 133,014
Capital expenditure (347,516) (43,269) (942,139) (596,298) (10,031) (42,685)
Free Cash flows to firm 891,508 (173,283) (77,870) (828,290) (659,244) 90,329
Net borrowing (repaid) / obtained (417,508) (11,914) 443,415 610,896 391,325 (4,718)
Interest payments (251,020) (225,354) (129,803) (55,933) (14,623) (5,120)
Free Cash flows to equity holders 222,980 (410,551) 235,742 (273,327) (282,542) 80,491
E Free Cash Flowsto firm Free Cash Flowsto equity holders
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Analysis on Free Cash Flows

Free cash flows represent the cash a company can generate after required investment to maintain or expand its
assets base. It is a measurement of a Company's financial performance and health.
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION
AND HOW WEALTH DISTRIBUTED

FY 2024 FY 2023
Rs. ‘000’ % Rs. ‘000’ %

Wealth Generated
Sales (including taxes) 14,863,390 99.39% 11,549,441 98.09%
Other operating income 91,337 0.61% 225,474 1.91%
Total Wealth generated during the year 14,954,727 100% 11,774,915 100%
Distribution of Wealth
Operating costs and other general expenses 8,827,204 59.03% 7,642,713 64.91%
To Employees as Remuneration 973,610 6.51% 837,220 7.11%
To Government as Taxes 4,426,251 29.60% 2,827,574 24.01%
To Society as Donations 6,443 0.04% 6,152 0.05%
To Finance Providers as Finance Cost 276,174 1.85% 303,203 2.57%
Retained within the Company 445,045 2.98% 158,053 1.34%
Total Wealth distributed during the year 14,954,727 100% 11,774,915 100%

WEALTH DISTRIBUTION 2024 WEALTH DISTRIBUTION 2023

To Financefs Company,
To Society, To Financers, To Company, . 2.57%  1.34%
0.04% To Society,
0.05%

/

11%

6.51%

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 27




Annual Report 2024

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Gross Profit Ratio

The relationship of the gross profit made for a specified
period and net sales achieved during that period.
Net Profit Ratio

Net profit ratio is the ratio of net profit (after taxes)
to net sales.

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation &
Amortization (EBITDA)

The EBITDA ratio indicates how much profit a company
makes before paying for Interest, Tax, Depreciation &
Amortization.

Current Ratio

A company’s current assets divided by its current
liabilities. This ratio gives you a sense of a company’s
ability to meet short-term liabilities, and is a measure
of financial strength in the short term. A ratio of 1
implies adequate current assets to cover current
liabilities: the higher above 1, the better.

Debt-Equity Ratio

The ratio of a company’s liabilities to its equity. The
higher the level of debt, the more important it is for
a company to have positive earnings and steady cash
flow. For comparative purposes, debt-equity ratio is
most useful for companies within the same industry.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

The portion of a company’s profit allocated to each
outstanding share of ordinary shareholders. Earnings
per share serve as an indicator of a company’s
profitability

Profit Margin

Determined by dividing net income by net sales during
a time period and is expressed as a percentage. Net
profit margin is a measure of efficiency and the higher
the margin, the better. Trends in margin can be
attributed to rising/falling production costs or rising/
falling price of the goods sold.

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

The amount of profits earned (before interest and
taxes), expressed as a percentage of total equity. This
is a widely followed measure of profitability, thus the
higher the number the better. ROCE tells you the
amount of profit a company is generating per one
rupee of capital employed.

Return on Equity (ROE)

A percentage that indicates how well common
stockholders’ invested money is being used. The
percentage is the result of dividing net earnings by
common stockholders’ equity. The ROE is used for
measuring growth and profitability. You can compare
a company’s ROE to the ROE of its industry to
determine how a company is doing compared to its
competition.

Cash from Operations to Sales

The cash flow from operations to sales ratio reveals
the ability of a business to generate cash flow in
proportion to its sales. It is the ratio of operating cash
flows to net .sales
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
No. of Shareholding Total shares
Shareholders From | To
378 1 - 100 8,069
406 101 - 500 112,808
615 501 - 1000 387,504
309 1001 - 5000 709,670
61 5001 - 10000 484,819
21 10001 - 15000 272,470
15 15001 - 20000 270,860
6 20001 - 25000 143,370
4 25001 - 30000 110,095
2 30001 - 35000 64,086
4 35001 - 40000 157,000
2 40001 - 45000 85,500
1 45001 - 50000 50,000
1 50001 - 55000 51,000
3 55001 - 60000 172,650
1 65001 - 70000 68,290
2 70001 - 75000 148,000
1 75001 - 80000 80,000
1 80001 - 85000 82,900
1 85001 - 90000 89,530
3 95001 - 100000 296,834
1 110001 - 115000 114,000
1 115001 - 120000 120,000
1 120001 - 125000 122,501
1 130001 - 135000 133,500
1 155001 - 160000 157,937
1 170001 - 175000 170,700
1 180001 - 185000 183,700
1 195001 - 200000 200,000
1 240001 - 245000 243,200
1 350001 - 355000 354,072
2 465001 - 470000 935,169
1 495001 - 500000 500,000
1 590001 - 595000 594,500
1 645001 - 650000 645,100
1 1125001 - 1130000 1,127,255
1 3035001 - 3040000 3,039,700
1 10190001 - 10195000 10,191,536
1 27480001 - 27485000 27,481,675

1856 50,160,000
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AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
Shareholder’s Category Number of Number of
Shareholders Shares held
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties _ _
NIT and ICP 2 1,129,855
Directors
Mr. Mohammed YasinFecto 2 37,673,211
Mr. Khalid Yacoob 1 2,750
Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan 1 2,500
Ms. Saira lbrahim Bawany 1 3,300
Mr. AamirGhani 1 2,750
Mr. Mohammad Anwar Habib 1 2,750
7 37,687,261
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking
Finance Companies, Insurance and Modarabas 10 4,186,041
Mutual Funds
CDC - Trustee NBP Stock Fund 1 243,200
CDC - Trustee NBP Islamic Sarmaya lzafa Fund 1 230,700
First Crescent Modaraba 1 800
3 474,480
OTHERS
Institutions (Joint Stock Companies) 26 1,431,782
Others 4 183,589
Individuals - Local 1,804 5,066,692
1,834 6,682,063
Total: 1,856 50,160,000
Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest
Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto 37,673,211
Muslim Commercial Bank Limited - Treasury 3,039,700

There were no trading in shares by any Directors, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary

and their Spouses and Minor Children.

The term executives includes employees having salary of more than Rs. 300,000/= per month.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES

(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

M/s. Fecto Cement Limited ('the Company') has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019, ('the Regulations) in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

Male 6
Female 1

2. The Composition of board is as follows:

Independent Directors Khalid Yacoob

Aamir Ghani

Jamil Ahmed Khan
Mohammed Anwar Habib

Non-Executive Directors Rohail Ajmal
Saira Ibrahim Bawani (Female)
Executive Directors Mohammed Yasin Fecto

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7) listed
companies including this company;

4. The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and these
Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman, and in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017
and Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board;

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Companies Act, 2017 and these Regulations;

9. Up to the date of reporting period (i.e. June 30, 2024), following Directors have attended Directors training
program:

(i) Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan

(ii)  Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib
(iii)  Mr. Rohail Ajmal

(iv)  Mr. Khalid Yacoob

(v)  Mr. Aamir Ghani

One Director Mr. Mohammed Yasin Fecto, meets the criteria of exemption from Directors Training Program. The
remaining director, Ms. Saira Ibrahim Bawani, will obtain certification under the Directors Training Program in due

course of time as encouraged under the regulations.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
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Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval
of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. All members of the Committees are
independent Directors;

AUDIT COMMITTEE

(i) Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Chairman
(i)  Mr. Mohammed Anwar Habib Member
(iii)  Mr. Rohail Ajmal Member

HR and REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(i) Mr. Jamil Ahmed Khan Chairman
(i) Mr. Khalid Yacoob Member
(iii)  Mr. Mohammed Anwer Habib Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed,documented and advised to the
committees for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

i Audit Committee Quarterly
ii. HR and Remuneration Committee Annual

15. The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified and experienced
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered
with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and their
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not close relative ( spouse, parent, dependent and non dependent
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary
or a director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services

except in accordance with the Companies Act 2017, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the regulations have been
complied with.

On behalf of the Board

!

AAMIR GHANI
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Karachi: October 07, 2024
<7, FECTO CEMENT LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN THE LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 ('the Regulations') prepared by the Board of Directors of

M/s. Fecto Cement Limited ('the Company') for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements
of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or
to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures
and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained
in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended

June 30, 2024.
RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants
Karachi.

Date: October 07,2024
UDIN: CR202410210XdZB3Yb4h

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 33




Annual Report 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Fecto Cement Limited (‘the Company'), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
('the financial statements'), and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and, respectively, give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.




Following is the Key Audit Matter:
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Key audit matter

Revenue Recognition

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Company
recognized net revenue of Rs. 10,908 million as disclosed
in note 27 to the financial statements.

As a part of our overall response to the audit risk in
identifying and assessing the risk related to revenue
recognition, we considered that there is inherent risk
that revenue may be overstated as it is key performance
measure, which could create an incentive or pressure
on the Company's management to meet targets. Further,
we have focused our audit activities over the revenue
recognized near to the year end as there was a high risk
that revenue may be recorded before the control of
goods is transferred to the customer and in an incorrect
accounting period.

Based on the above and considering that the revenue
recognition is a significant and high-risk area, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to address the matter included,
but were not limited to, the following:

® (Obtaining an understanding of the process relating
to recognition of revenue and testing the design,
implementation, and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over recording of revenue.

® Comparing a sample of revenue transactions
recorded during the year with sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents.

® Comparing a sample of revenue transactions
recorded around the year-end with the sales orders,
sales invoices, delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documentation to assess if the related
revenue was recorded in the appropriate accounting
period.

® Assessing whether the accounting policies for
revenue recognition complies with the requirements
of IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'.

® (Considering the appropriateness of disclosures in
the financial statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. However, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

L] Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.
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We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the
books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company's business; and

(d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mr. Muhammad Rafiq Dosani.

Aot Lo

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date: October 07,2024
UDIN: AR202410210jcpFllgG5
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024 Note June 30 June 30

2024 2023

Rupees in ‘000*
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves

Authorized capital

75,000,000 (2023: 75,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 750,000 750,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

50,160,000 (2023: 50,160,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 4 501,600 501,600

Revenue reserves

General reserve 550,000 550,000

Accumulated profit 2,755,559 2,438,236
3,305,559 2,988,236

Capital Reserve

Surplus on revaluation of investment in unquoted shares 54,527 106,919
3,861,686 3,596,755

Non-current liabilities

Long term financing from a banking company - secured 5 678,308 860,641
Lease liability 6 12,285 48,398
Deferred income - government grant 7 102,067 140,528
Deferred taxation 8 88,006 -
880,666 1,049,567
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 9 1,955,084 1,346,954
Short term borrowing - secured 10 735,513 954,052
Accrued mark-up 11 38,699 54,205
Unclaimed dividend 14,473 14,489
Unpaid dividend 185 185
Current maturity of long term financing - secured 12 262,238 238,355
Current maturity of lease liabilities 6 27,335 27,900
Current maturity of government grant 7 38,471 44,017
3,071,998 2,680,157
Contingencies and commitments 13 - -
Total equity and liabilities 7,814,350 7,326,479
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 2,951,117 2,708,837
Right-of-use assets 15 46,248 76,812
Investment property 16 102,260 102,260
Long term investments 17 327,720 401,511
Long term deposits 18 10,101 10,101
Long term loans, advances and other receivable 19 40,126 8,466
Deferred taxation 8 - 113,586
3,477,572 3,421,573
Current assets
Stores and spares 20 1,470,666 1,508,972
Stock-in-trade 21 1,999,639 1,800,895
Trade debts - unsecured 22 478,780 146,735
Short term loan to a related party 23 19,990 70,895
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivable 24 44,721 68,911
Tax refunds due from government 25 41,735 109,833
Cash and bank balances 26 281,247 198,665
4,336,778 3,904,906
Total assets 7,814,350 7,326,479
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
7 oYL /éiz ol
MOHAMMED YASIN FECTO ROHAIL AJMAL MUHAMMAD HANIF IDREES
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Restated
Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000’

Sales revenue - net 27 10,908,118 8,682,183
Cost of sales 28 (9,478,553) (8,369,763)
Gross profit 1,429,565 312,420
Administrative expenses 29 (346,335) (309,741)
Distribution costs 30 (107,138) (92,564)

(453,473) (402,305)
Finance costs 31 (276,174) (303,203)
Other expenses 32 (2,953) (5,315)

(279,127) (308,518)
Operating profit / (loss) 696,965 (398,403)
Other income 33 91,337 225,474
Profit / (loss) before levies and taxation 788,302 (172,929)
Levies 34 (118,174) (108,913)
Profit / (loss) before taxation 670,128 (281,842)
Taxation 35 (352,805) 148,597
Profit / (loss) after taxation 317,323 (133,245)

--------------------- (Rupees)

Earning / (loss) per share - basic and diluted 36 6.33 (2.66)

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Profit / (loss) after taxation

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
Unrealized loss on remeasurement of the

investment in M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Ltd.
Deferred tax thereon

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Annual Report 2024

2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000’

317,323 (133,245)
(73,791) (29,259)

21,399 8,485
(52,392) (20,774)
264,931 (154,019)

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Revenue Reserves Capital
reserve
Issued, General Accumulated  Surplus on Total
Subscribed Reserve Profit Revaluation of
& Paid up investment in
capital unquoted
shares
Rupees in '000'
Balance as at June 30, 2022 501,600 550,000 2,571,481 127,693 3,750,774
Total comprehensive loss for the
year ended June 30, 2023
Loss after taxation - - (133,245) - (133,245)
Other Comprehensive loss - - - (20,774) (20,774)
- - (133,245) (20,774)  (154,019)
Balance as at June 30, 2023 501,600 550,000 2,438,236 106,919 3,596,755
Total comprehensive income / (loss)
for the year ended June 30, 2024
- Profit after taxation - - 317,323 - 317,323
- Other comprehensive loss - - - (52,392) (52,392)
- - 317,323 (52,392) 264,931
Balance as at June 30, 2024 501,600 550,000 2,755,559 54,527 3,861,686

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (loss) before levies and taxation

Adjustments for:

- Depreciation on operating fixed asset 14.1
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 15
- Finance costs 31
Provision for expected credit loss 32
Provision against slow moving and obsolete spares 32
Gain on disposal of investment property 33
Amortization of deferred government grant 33
Interest income 33
Gain on disposal of operating fixed asset 33

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Working capital changes
Decrease / (Increase) in current assets

- Stores and spares

- Stock-in-trade

- Trade debts

- Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivable
- Sales tax refundable

Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from / (used in) operations

Income tax paid

Long term deposits

Long term loan and advances

Cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CAH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property, plant and equipment

Disbursement of short term loan by related party 23
Repayment of short term loan by related party 23
Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of investment property

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed asset

Cash (used in) / generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of lease liability (principal portion)

Dividend paid

Repayment of long term financing (principal portion)

Finance cost paid

Short term borrowings - net

Net cash used in financing activities

Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year 37

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024 2023
— Rupeesin ‘000’
788,302 (172,929)
102,066 262,171
25,656 29,127
276,174 303,203
230 -
2,723

- (77,774)
(44,007) (46,610)
(21,127) (34,472)
(3,883) (935)
337,832 434,710
1,126,134 261,781
35,583 101,248
(198,744) (506,712)
(332,275) (71,541)
(4,595) 4,596
13,307 (17,240)
599,614 97,854
112,890 (391,795)
1,239,024 (130,014)
(184,681) (65,104)
- 173
(3,925) 310
1,050,418 (194,635)
(347,516) (43,269)
- (74,500)
50,905 29,000
22,177 12,041
- 117,787
11,961 1,328
(262,473) 42,387
(36,678) (23,905)
(16) (33)
(199,110) (139,729)
(251,020) (225,354)
181,720 151,720
668,544 (237,301)
119,401 (389,549)
(523,667) (134,118)
(404,266) (523,667)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1.

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

INTRODUCTION

Legal status of the Company

Fecto Cement Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in Pakistan on February 28, 1981 as a public limited
company under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (repealed with the enactment of the Companies Ordinance,
1984 on October 8, 1984 and subsequently by the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017). The shares of the
Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

Location of the registered office and the manufacturing facilities

Registered office:

The Company's registered office is situated at Plot # 60-C, Khayaban-Shahbaz, Phase-VI, Defense Housing
Authority, Karachi-75500.

Manufacturing facility:
The Company's manufacturing facility is situated at Sangjani Village Sangjani, Islamabad-4400.
Marketing office:

The company's marketing office, is situated at , 339, Main Peshawar Road, Chairing Cross Service Road,
Westridge-1, Rawalpindi.

Principal business activity

The principal activity of the Company is production and sale of ordinary Portland cement.
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. Accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of, and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement of items in these financial statements
Items in these financial statements have been measured at their historical cost except for:

(a) Long term investment in unquoted ordinary shares of M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited
which is carried at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the
application of the Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized
prospectively.

(a) Judgements

Judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognized in these financial statements are as follows:

Area of judgement Brief description of the judgement applied

Property, plant and equipment | Whether the consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
Company's fixed assets is reduced over time and, accordingly, whether
it is appropriate to use 'straight line method' as the depreciation method.

Lease Lease term and discount rate used to measure the right-of-use assets
and the lease liability

Investment in M/s. Frontier Unobservable inputs used in the valuation of long term investment in
Paper Products (Pvt) Limited | M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited.

Provision for taxation Refer Note 3.18

Timing of revenue recognition | Whether control of the promised goods is transferred to the customer
when the goods are dispatched from the Company's premises;.

Financing for payment of Discount rate used to determine the value of government grant element
wages and salaries / TERF embedded in the long term finance received from a commercial bank
under the SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries,
Renewable Energy Scheme and Temporary Economic Refinance Scheme.

(b) Assumptions and other major sources of estimation uncertainty

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year is
included are as follows:

Area of estimation Brief description of the assumption or the source of estimation
uncertainty uncertainty

Whether deferred tax assets should be recorded on unsued tax losses
Deffered Tax Asset and minimum tax - availability of future taxable profit with in next three
tax years against which such losses can be utilised.
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2.4.1 Property, plant and equipment

During the year, the Company engaged an independent foreign consultant for conducting an assessment
of remaining useful life of its plant and machinery in adherence to the requirement set forth by International
Accounting Standard 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. Based on such assessment, detailed analysis of
current performance indicators, maintenance history, experience with similar manufacturing lines and
regular inspection, it was concluded that Company’s Plant and Machinery will have useful life of 25 years
instead of earlier assessed life of 7-23.5 years. Had there been no change in the estimate of useful life, the
profit before tax and levy for the year would have been lower by Rs. 165,973 thousand and the balance
of property, plant and equipment would have been lower by 174,770 thousand. Further, the future profits
per annum before tax would increase by Rs. 165,973 thousand due to this change.

2.5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

2.5.1 Amendments to existing standards that became effective during the year

- The following new or amended standards and interpretations became effective during the period which
are considered to be relevant to the Company's financial statements :

- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)

- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)

The above amendments / interpretations do not likely have an effect on the financial statements of
the Company except noted below:

The Company adopted disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS practice
statements 2 'Making Materiality Judgments') from 01 July, 2023. Although amendments did not result
in any changes to the accounting policies themselves, they impact the accounting policy information
disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require disclosure of 'material', rather than 'significant' accounting policies. The
amendments also provide the guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting
policies, assisting entities to provide useful entity specific accounting policy information that user need
to understand other information in the financial statements.

- During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn Technical
Release 27 ‘IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)’ and issued the ‘IAS 12 Application Guidance on
Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes’ (the Guidance). Accordingly, in accordance with the
Guidance, the Company has changed its accounting policy to recognise minimum and final taxes as
‘Levy’ under IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” which were previously
being recognised as ‘Income tax’ .

The Company has accounted for the effects of these changes in accounting policy retrospectively under
IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and the corresponding figures
have been restated in these financial statements. The effects of restatements are as follows:
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Had there been no Impact of change in  After incorporating
change in accounting policy  effects of change in
accounting policy accounting policy
Note = cmemeememmeeeeee (Rupees in '000) ------===n=nmumun-
Effect on statement of profit or loss
For the year ended June 30, 2024
Operating profit before other expense 699,918 - 699,918
Other expenses (42,516) 39,563 (2,953)
Operating profit / (loss) 657,402 39,563 696,965
Other income 91,337 - 91,337
Profit before levies and taxation 748,739 39,563 788,302
Levies 34 - (118,174) (118,174)
Profit before taxation 748,739 (78,611) 670,128
Taxation 34
- Current tax (202,447) 78,611 (123,836)
- Prior year (5,978) - (5,978)
- Deferred tax (222,991) - (222,991)
(431,416) 78,611 (352,805)
Profit after taxation 317,323 - 317,323
For the year ended June 30, 2023
Operating loss before other expense (393,088) - (393,088)
Other expenses (5,315) - (5,315)
Operating profit / (loss) (398,403) - (398,403)
Other income 225,474 - 225,474
Profit before levies and taxation (172,929) - (172,929)
Levies 34 - (108,913) (108,913)
Profit before taxation (172,929) (108,913) (281,842)
Taxation 34
- Current tax (108,913) 108,913 -
- Prior year 9,622 - 9,622
- Deferred tax 138,975 - 138,975
39,684 108,913 148,597
Profit after taxation (133,245) - (133,245)

The related changes to the statement of cash flows with respect to the amount of profit before taxation have been
made as well. There is no impact on profit after tax and earnings per share, basic and diluted.

2.5.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017
and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2023:

- Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (amendment to IAS 1 in October 2022) aims to improve the
information an entity provides when its right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months
is subject to compliance with conditions. The amendment is also intended to address concerns about
classifying such a liability as current or non-current. Only covenants with which a company must comply
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on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. Covenants
with which the company must comply after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect a
liability’s classification at that date. However, when non-current liabilities are subject to future covenants,
companies will now need to disclose information to help users understand the risk that those liabilities
could become repayable within 12 months after the reporting date. The amendments apply retrospectively
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with earlier application permitted.
These amendments also specify the transition requirements for companies that may have early-adopted
the previously issued but not yet effective 2020 amendments to IAS 1 (as referred above).

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (amendment to IFRS 16 in September 2022) adds subsequent
measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements to be
accounted for as a sale. The amendment confirms that on initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes
variable lease payments when it measures a lease liability arising from a sale-and-leaseback transaction.
After initial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the general requirements for subsequent accounting
of the lease liability such that it recognizes no gain or loss relating to the right of use it retains. A seller-
lessee may adopt different approaches that satisfy the new requirements on subsequent measurement.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 with
earlier application permitted. Under IAS 8, a seller-lessee will need to apply the amendments
retrospectively to sale-and-leaseback transactions entered into or after the date of initial application
of IFRS 16 and will need to identify and re-examine sale-and-leaseback transactions entered into since
implementation of IFRS 16 in 2019, and potentially restate those that included variable lease payments.
If an entity (a seller-lessee) applies the amendments arising from Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
for an earlier period, the entity shall disclose that fact.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments
to IFRS 10and IAS 28) — The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business
or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves
neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective
date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

Supplier Finance Arrangements (amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7) introduce two new disclosure
objectives for accompany to provide information about its supplier finance arrangements that would
enable users (investors) to assess the effects of these arrangements on the company’s liabilities and
cash flows, and the company’s exposure to liquidity risk. Under the amendments, companies also need
to disclose the type and effect of non-cash changes in the carrying amounts of the financial liabilities
that are part of a supplier finance arrangement. The amendments also add supplier finance arrangements
as an example to the existing disclosure requirements in IFRS 7 on factors a company might consider
when providing specific quantitative liquidity risk disclosures about its financial liabilities. The amendments
are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted. However,
some relief from providing certain information in the year of initial application is available.

Amendment in IAS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’, - lack of exchangeability
(effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025) a currency is exchangeable
when an entity is able to exchange that currency for the other currency through markets or exchange
mechanisms that create enforceable rights and obligations without undue delay at the measurement
date and for a specified purpose; a currency is not exchangeable into the other currency if an entity
can only obtain an insignificant amount of the other currency.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of Insurance contracts within the scope of the Standard. The objective of IFRS 17 is to
ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. This
information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that insurance contracts
have on the entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SECP vide its SRO
1715(1)/2023 dated November 21, 2023 has directed that IFRS 17 shall be followed for the period
commencing January 1, 2026 by companies engaged in insurance / takaful and re-insurance / re-takaful
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business.

- International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules — Amendments to IAS 12 (the Amendments). - The
Amendments introduce a mandatory temporary exception to the accounting for deferred taxes arising
from the Pillar Two model rules and requires new disclosures about an entity’s exposure to income
taxes arising from the Pillar Two model rules for affected entities to help users of financial statements
better understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes arising from that legislation, before
its effective date. The mandatory temporary exception applies immediately and retrospectively in
accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. The disclosure
requirements, in relation to periods in which Pillar Two legislation has been enacted but is yet to take
effect for the entity, apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, but not
for any interim periods ending on or before 31 December 2023.

- The International Accounting Standards (the IASB or the Board) issued Amendments to IFRS 9 and FRS
7. Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial instruments. The amendments:

- Clarify that a financial liability is derecognised on the 'settlement date’, i.e., when the related obligation
is discharged or cancelled or expires or the liability otherwise qualifies for derecognition. They also
introduce an accounting policy option to derecognise financial liabilities that are settled through an
electronic payment system before settlement date if certain conditions are met.

- Clarify how to assess the contractual cash now characteristics of financial assets that include
environmental, social and governance (ESG)-Linked features and other similar contingent features.

- Clarify the treatment of non-recourse assets and contractually linked instruments (CLI).

- Require additional disclosures in IFRS 7 for financial assets and liabilities with contractual terms that
reference a contingent event (including those that are ESG-linked), and equity instruments classified
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

- Annual Improvements - Volume Eleven:

- Hedge Accounting by a First-time Adopter (Amendments to IFRS 1) - Paragraphs B5 and B6 of IFRS 1
have been amended to include cross references to the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting in
paragraph 6.4.1(a), (b) and (c) of IFRS 9. The amendments are intended to address potential confusion
arising from an inconsistency between the wording in IFRS 1 and the requirements for hedge accounting
in IFRS 9.

- Gain or Loss on Derecognition (Amendments to IFRS 7) - Paragraph B38 of IFRS 7 has been amended
to update the language on unobservable inputs and to include a cross reference to paragraphs 72 and
73 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

- Introduction (Amendments to Guidance on implementing IFRS 7) - Paragraph 1G1 of the Guidance on
implementing IFRS 7 has been amended to clarify that the guidance does not necessarily illustrate all
the requirements in the referenced paragraphs of IFRS 7, nor does it create additional requirements.

- Disclosure of Deferred Difference between Fair Value and Transaction Price (Amendments to Guidance
on implementing IFRS 7) - Paragraph 1G14 of the Guidance on implementing IFRS 7 has been amended
mainly to make the wording consistent with the requirements in paragraph 28 of IFRS 7 and with the
concepts and terminology used in IFRS 9 and IFRS 13.

- Credit Risk Disclosures (Amendments to Guidance on implementing IFRS 7) - Paragraph 1G20B of the

Guidance on implementing IFRS 7 has been amended to simplify the explanation of which aspects of
the IFRS requirements are not illustrated in the example.
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- Lessee Derecognition of Lease Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 9) - Paragraph 2.1 of IFRS 9 has been
amended to clarify that, when a lessee has determined that a lease liability has been extinguished in
accordance with IFRS 9, the lessee is required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 and recognise any resulting
gain or loss in profit or loss. However, the amendment does not address how a lessee distinguishes
between a lease modification as defined in IFRS 16 Leases and an extinguishment of a lease liability
in accordance with IFRS 9.

- Transaction Price (Amendments to IFRS 9) - Paragraph 5.1.3 of IFRS 9 has been amended to replace
the reference to 'transaction price as defined by IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' with
‘the amount determined by applying IFRS 15'. The use of the term "transaction price' in relation to
IFRS 15 was potentially confusing and so it has been removed. The term was also deleted from Appendix
A of IFRS 9.

- Determination of a 'De Facto Agent' (Amendments to IFRS 10) - Paragraph B74 of IFRS 10 has been
amended to clarify that the relationship described in 874 is just one example of various relationships
that might exist between the investor and other parties acting as de facto agents of the investor. The
amendment is intended to remove the inconsistency with the requirement in paragraph B73 for an
entity to use judgement to determine whether other parties are acting as de facto agents.

- Cost Method (Amendments to IAS 7) - Paragraph 37 of IAS 7 has been amended to replace the term
‘cost method' with 'at cost', following the prior deletion of the definition of 'cost method".

The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations have not been
early adopted by the Company and are not likely to have any material impact on the Company's financial
statements.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued the following
standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt by the SECP as at
June 30, 2024:

- IFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards)

- IFRS 18 (Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements)

- IFRS 19 (Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures)

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3.1 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED 49




3.2

Annual Report 2024

A - Leases other than short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

(a)

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

B - Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to those leases where the nature
of the underlying asset is such that, when new, the asset is typically not of low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.
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The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing
market interest rates.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

3.3 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations,
public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the
carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such
changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognised provision is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events,
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3.4 Financial liabilities

“Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit or loss'
(FVTPL). A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or have
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expired or when the cash flows relating to the financial liability have been substantially modified.
Property, plant and equipment and Investment property

Operating assets

Operating assets are stated at cost (including where relevant related borrowing cost) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except for free hold land and capital stores which are stated
at cost. Depreciation on additions is charged for the month the asset is put to use and no depreciation is

charged in the month of disposal.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to profit and loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on disposal of assets, if any, are included in income currently.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss applying the straight line method using the useful lives and
residual values specified below:

Assets Useful lives Residual values
(Years) (% of cost)

Factory building 21.5-235 -

Non-factory building 21.5-235 -

Plant, machinery and equipment 25 5

Quarry transport equipment 8-10 5
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 0-5
Motor vehicles 5 10

Useful lives, depreciation methods and residual values are reassessed annually and change, if any, is applied
prospectively.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost including, where relevant, related financing costs less impairment
losses, if any. These costs are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when they are available for use.

Capital spares

Items of spare parts are classified as capital spares when they meet in the definition of property, plant and
equipment provided in the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. Such
items are transferred to operating fixed assets when they are commissioned into the corresponding item
of plant or machinery (i.e. when they are replaced against worn out, obsolete or damaged parts).

Investment property
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditures including major renewals and improvements are capitalised only when it is
probable that respective future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, while maintenance and normal repairs are charged to
the statement of profit or loss, as and when incurred.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Disposal of investment property is recognised when significant risk and rewards,
incidental to the ownership of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses are determined
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by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets. These are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Gains or losses on disposal of investment properties, if
any, are included in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

The carrying values of investment properties are reviewed at each reporting date for indications that an
asset may be impaired and carrying values may not be recovered. If such indications exist and where the
carrying values exceeds the estimated recoverable amounts, the asset is written down to the recoverable
amounts. The recoverable amount of investment properties is the greater of fair value less cost to sell and
value in use.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the recoverable amount of investment properties since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the investment properties does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the investment properties in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

3.6 Stores and spares

These are valued under the moving average cost method (less impairment loss if any) other than stores
and spares in transit which are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon less
impairment loss if any.

Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on
management's best estimate regarding their future usability.

3.7 Stock-in-trade
Basis of valuation

All items of stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and their net realizable value as of the reporting
date.

Determination of cost

The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling
and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade
discounts and other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the quantity of production, such as
direct labour. They also include a systematic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are
incurred in converting materials into finished goods. The allocation of fixed production overheads to the
costs of conversion is based on the normal operating capacity of the production facilities (which is the
production expected to be achieved on average over a number of days under normal circumstances, taking
into account the loss of capacity resulting from planned maintenance).

The cost of the items consumed or sold and those held in stock at the reporting date is determined as
follows:
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Item of stock in trade Method of valuation

Raw Materials First-in-first-out (FIFO) method

Packing materials First-in-first-out (FIFO) method

Work-in-process Weighted average cost determined on a quarterly basis
Finished goods Weighted average cost determined on a quarterly basis

Determination of net realizable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories may not be
recoverable if those inventories are damaged, if they have become wholly or partially obsolete, or if their
selling prices have declined. The cost of inventories may also not be recoverable if the estimated costs of
completion or the estimated costs to be incurred to make the sale have increased.

The Company estimates the net realisable value of inventories based on the most reliable evidence available,
at the reporting date, of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into
consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the reporting
period to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the finished product in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.
However, when a decline in the price of materials indicates that the cost of the finished product exceeds
net realisable value, the materials are written down to net realisable value. In such circumstances, the
replacement cost of the materials is used as the measure of their net realisable value.

A new assessment is made of net realisable value in each subsequent period. When the circumstances that
previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence
of an increase in net realisable value because of changed economic circumstances, the amount of the
writedown is reversed (i.e. the reversal is limited to the amount of the original write-down) so that the
new carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realisable value.

3.8 Trade debts
These are carried at their transaction price less any allowance for lifetime expected credit losses. A receivable
is recognized when the goods are delivered to dealers as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances and short term borrowings from banks which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

3.10 Financial assets

3.10.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement
The Company recognizes a financial asset when and only when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument evidencing investment. The Company classifies its financial assets into either
of following three categories:

(a) financial assets measured at amortized cost.

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
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(c) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A Financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within business model whose objective
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue thereof.

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income when it is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue thereof.

(c) Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as aforesaid. However, for an
investment in equity instrument which is not held for trading, the Company may make an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the
investment.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value.

3.10.2 Subsequent measurement
(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (determined using the effective interest
method) less accumulated impairment losses.

Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses arising from
such financial assets are recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI
These are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses.

A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in
accordance is recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognised or reclassified.
When the financial asset is derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in profit or loss.
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(c) Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Net gains or losses arising from remeasurement of such financial assets as well as any interest
income accruing thereon are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. However, for an investment
in equity instrument which is not held for trading and for which the Company has made an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the
investment, such gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Further, when
such investment is disposed off, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is not reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

3.10.3 Impairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses in respect of financial assets measured
at amortised cost.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'Simplified Approach' to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance.

For other financial assets, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'General Approach' to measuring expected credit
losses whereby the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. However, if, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses.

The Company measures expected credit losses on financial assets in a way that reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount, time value of money and reasonable and supportable information at the
reporting date about the past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic conditions. The
Company recognises in profit or loss, as an impairment loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

3.10.4 De-recognition
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.
The Company directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event.

3.11 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle liability simultaneously.

3.12 Revenue

Revenue from sale of goods
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Revenue from sale of goods (cement) is recegnized when the customer obtains control of the goods, being
when the goods are delivered to the dealer, the dealer has full discretion over the selling price of the goods
subject to maximum retail price printed on bag and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
dealer's acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when the goods have been dispatched from the Company
premises, the risk of loss has been transferred to the dealer, and either the dealer has accepted the goods
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have elapsed, or the Company has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Other income

Interest income
Mark-up on TFC's, loans and bank deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal
amount outstanding and at the rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividends received from investments measured at fair value through profit or loss or at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognized in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non d financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash
Generating Units (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of
the assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised. A reversal of impairment loss for a cash generating unit is allocated to the assets
of the unit pro rata with the carrying amounts of those assets. The increase in the carrying amounts shall
be treated as reversals of impairment losses for individual assets and recognized in profit or loss unless the
asset is measured at revalued amount. Any reversal of impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated
as a revaluation increase.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current
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and prior periods. As a consequence, actuarial risk (that benefits will be less than expected) and investment
risk (that assets will be insufficient to meet expected benefits) fall, in substance, on the employee.

The Company operates a funded provident scheme for its employees which is classified as a defined
contribution plan. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Company and the employees to the plan
at the rate equal to 10% of their basic salary plus cost of living allowance.

When an employee has rendered service to the Company during a period, the Company recognises the
contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service as an expense in profit or
loss and as a liability in the statement of financial position (payable to provident fund), after deducting any
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before
the end of the reporting period, the Company recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

Compensated absences

Provision for accumulating compensated absences, whether vesting or non-vesting, is recognized as the
employees render services that increase their entitlement to future paid absences to extent of maximum
30 days. Such provision is measured as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are recognized as expense in the period in which they occur.
Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Rupees at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Rupees at the rate of
exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. All exchange differences arising on transaction
are charged to the statement of profit or loss in that period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

To the extent that the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing
costs incurred on that borrowing during the period.

To the extent that the Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset, the Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to all borrowings of the Company that are outstanding during
the period. However, the Company excludes from this calculation borrowing costs applicable to borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset until substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

The Company begins capitalising borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset on the
‘commencement date' which is the date when the Company first meets all of the following conditions: (a)
it incurs expenditures for the asset; (b) it incurs borrowing costs; and (c) it undertakes activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.

The Company suspends capitalisation of borrowing costs during extended periods in which it suspends
active development of a qualifying asset.
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The Company ceases capitalising borrowing costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Levies and Taxation
Levies

A levy is an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits imposed by the government that does not
meet the definition of income tax provided in the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12 'Income Taxes'
because it is not based on taxable profit.

In these financial statements, levy includes minimum tax under section 113 or other sections of Income
tax ordinance, Income tax under final tax regime, workers' welfare fund expense and workers' profit
participation. The corresponding effect of levy other than worker's welfare fund expense and workers'
profit participation, advance tax paid has been netted off and the net position is shown in the statement
of financial position.

Current tax
In these financial statements , minimum tax on local sales revenue is recognized as levy under section 113
of the Income Tax Ordinance and other sections of the said ordinance. Any excess charged under the normal

tax regime is recognized as current tax.

In these financial statements , Income tax under final tax regime is recognized as levy and the excess amount
charged is recognized as current tax.

Deferred tax

Although temporary differences arises but no deferred tax is recorded in these financial statements. The
entity is expected to be in non-tax/ levy regime for foreseeable future as, in such a case, the effective tax
rate would be zero.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of Shares) Rupees in '000'

45,600,000 45,600,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each issued as

fully paid in cash 456,000 456,000

4,560,000 4,560,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each issued as
fully paid bonus shares 45,600 45,600
50,160,000 50,160,000 501,600 501,600
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4.1 There are no agreements among shareholders in respect of voting rights, board selection, right of first
refusal and block voting.

4.2 Ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. Holders of these shares are
entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general
meetings of the Company. All rights attached to the Company’s shares held by the Company are suspended
until those shares are reissued.

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

5. LONG TERM FINANCING FROM A
BANKING COMPANY - secured

Financing under SBP schemes

Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy 5.1 271,903 337,199
Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) 5.2 373,585 422,001
645,488 759,200
Other financing arrangements
Term Finance Il 5.3 32,820 101,441
678,308 860,641
5.1 Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy - secured
Opening balance 439,329 436,213
Interest recognized on unwinding of the liability 31 37,250 40,721
Loan installments paid during the year (106,496) (37,605)
Closing carrying amount - net of deferred grant 370,083 439,329
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities 12 (98,180) (102,130)
Non-current maturity 271,903 337,199

5.1.1 Inthe year 2021, the Company availed a long term financing facility amounting to Rs. 500.212 million from
M/s. Askari Bank Limited under the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP's) Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy
notified vide IH & SMEFD Circular No. 10 of 2019 dated July 26, 2019. The facility is secured by first pari
passu charge, of Rs. 673.33 million, over all fixed assets of the Company, at 25% margin.

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:
(@)  The applicable markup rate is 5% per annum;

(b)  The tenor of each tranche of the facility is 8 years (including 2-year grace period commencing from
the date of the disbursement of the funds); and

(c) Each tranche of the loan is to be repaid in 24 equal quarterly instalments.

5.1.2 Since the facility carries an interest rate which is well below the market interest rate prevailing as on the
date of disbursement of funds, the financing is considered to contain an element of government grant as
per the IAS 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance'. Accordingly,
the Company measured the loan liability at its fair value (determined on a present value basis) and
recognized the difference between the disbursement proceeds received from the bank and the said fair
value as deferred income in the statement of financial position. This deferred income is being recognized
as other income in profit or loss in proportion to the recognition of interest cost on the outstanding loan
balance (based on the effective interest rate method).
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Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)

Opening balance 489,605 464,812
Interest on unwinding of liability 31 51,093 49,841
Payment during the year (71,676) (25,048)

469,022 489,605
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities 12 (95,437) (67,604)
Non-current maturity 373,585 422,001

This represents long term financing facility amounting to Rs. 622.786 million from M/s. Askari Bank Limited
under the SBP's Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) notified vide IH & SMEFD Circular No. 1 of
2020 dated March 17, 2020. The facility is secured by first pari passu charge amounting to Rs 1,460 million
over present and future current and fixed assets of the Company (including land, building, plant and
machinery) located at plant Sagjani District, Islamabad @ 25% margin.

The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:
(a) The applicable markup rate is 4% per annum;

(b)  The tenor of the each tranche of the facility is 10 years (including 2-year grace period commencing
from the date of disbursement of the funds); and

(c)  Each tranche of the loan is to be repaid in 32 equal quarterly instalments.

Since the facility carries the markup rate below the prevailing market interest rate, in accordance with a
technical opinion issued by the Accounting Standards Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) in November 2020, the financing is considered to contain an element of government grant
as per the IAS 20 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance'. Accordingly,
at initial recognition, the Company measured the loan liability at its fair value (determined on a present
value basis) and recognized the difference between the disbursement proceeds received from the bank
and the said fair value as deferred government grant in the statement of financial position. This deferred
grant is being recognized as income in profit or loss in proportion to the recognition of interest cost on the
outstanding loan balance (based on the effective interest rate method).

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000—

Term Finance Il

Opening balance 170,062 181,178
Conversion from Term Finance - 1 - 24,685
Payment during the year (68,621) (35,801)

101,441 170,062
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities 12 (68,621) (68,621)
Non-current maturity 32,820 101,441

This represents the amount availed under a term finance facility amounting to Rs. 181.78 million obtained
from M/s. Askari Bank Limited. The facility has been obtained to fund fabrication material and civil works
regarding installation, erection and commissioning of imported machineries. The facility is secured by first
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pari passu charge amounting to Rs. 1,460 million over present and future current and fixed assets of the
Company (including land, building and plant and machinery located at the Company's manufacturing facility

in Sangjani, District Islamabad with 25% margin).
The principal terms and conditions of the facility are as follows:

(a)  The applicable markup rate is 3-Month KIBOR +2%;

(b)  The tenor of the facility is 4 years (including 1-year grace period commencing from the date of first

disbursement); and

(c)  The loan is to be repaid in 12 equal quarterly instalments (to be commenced after the aforesaid

grace period).

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——
6. LEASE LIABILITY
Opening balance 76,298 100,203
Interest on unwinding of the liability 31 9,931 10,943
Lease rentals paid during the year (46,609) (34,848)
39,620 76,298
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities (27,335) (27,900)
Non-current maturity 12,285 48,398
7. DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANT
Opening balance 184,545 231,155
Amortization 33 (44,007) (46,610)
140,538 184,545
Less: Current maturity shown under current liability (38,471) (44,017)
Non-current maturity 102,067 140,528
8. DEFERRED TAXATION - net

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and
the law allows net settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as

follows:

Deferred tax liability arising in respect of :

- Accelerated tax depreciation 391,402 373,041
- Unrealized gain on long term investment 22,272 43,671
- Financing under SBP refinance scheme 40,332 51,139
- Right-of-use assets and related lease liability 1,897 145
455,903 467,996

Deferred tax asset arising in respect of :
- Provision against slow moving and obsolete spares (5,073) (4,225)
- Provision for bad debts - (255)
- Deferred government grant (40,228) (51,980)
- Minimum tax (183,632) (259,728)
- Unused business tax losses - (68,511)
- Unabsorbed tax depreciation (138,964) (196,883)
(367,897) (581,582)
88,006 (113,586)
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Deferred tax asset in respect of minimum tax

Deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 199.049 million (2023: Rs. 46.062 million) has not been recognized
since the Company may not able to use the benefits therefrom.

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors for goods and services:

-Creditors other than associated company 1,282,424 743,590
-Associated company 75,443 47,790
1,357,867 791,380
Accrued expenses 11,629 10,505
Provision for compensated absences 9.2 25,816 29,071
Provision for marking fee 9.3 86,243 75,182
Payable to provident fund 5,351 5,157
Worker's Welfare Fund payable 9.4 - 31,047
Advances from customers and dealers - unsecured 9.1 132,210 158,668
Security deposits payable 9.5 10,515 10,160
Excise duty payable 136,874 119,836
Sales tax payable 94,881 76,276
Withholding income tax 12,088 6,727
Worker's Profit Participation Fund payable 34 39,563 -
Other liabilities 42,047 32,945
1,955,084 1,346,954

During the year, the performance obligations underlying the opening contract liability of Rs. 158.668 million
were satisfied in full. Accordingly, the said liability was recorded as revenue during the year.

Information regarding the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations underlying the closing contract
liability of Rs. 132.21 million is not presented since the expected duration of all the contracts entered into
with the customers is less than one year.

2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

Provision for compensated absences

Opening balance 29,071 27,313
Charge for the year 3,991 4,464
Payments made during the year (7,246) (2,706)
Closing balance 25,816 29,071

This represents an amount payable to Pakistan Standards & Quality Control Authority (PSQCA) against
marking fee for the period from July 2007 till the reporting date.

Worker's Welfare Fund payable

Opening balance 31,047 31,047
Less: Adjusted against prior period income tax refunds (31,047) -
Closing balance - 31,047
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The Company has not utilized any amount from the security deposits collected from cement dealers for
its business purposes.

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000—

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured

Running finance 10.1 685,513 722,332
Cash finance loan 10.2 - 148,500
Export re-finance 10.3 50,000 83,220

735,513 954,052

The Company has a total finance facility of Rs. 810 million (2023: Rs. 810 million) from various banks.
These arrangements are secured by way of first pari passu charge over all the Company's movable and
immovable properties and hypothecation of Company's stock-in-trade, stores and spares, book debts,
machinery. The rate of mark-up ranges from 3-Month KIBOR plus 1% to 3-Month KIBOR plus 1.5% (2023:
1-Month KIBOR plus 1% to 3-Month KIBOR plus 1.25%) per annum. The validity of these facilities ranges
from August 29, 2024 to March 31, 2025.

The Company has obtained a Cash Finance Facility of Rs. 200 million (June 2023: 200 million) from a
commercial bank. The facility is secured by way of pledge of coal @ 25% margin at customer factory
premises located in Sanjani and to be pledge under bank's approved muccadam. Registered charge over
pledge of stock with SECP with 25% margin located at the factory premises in Sanjani. The facility carries
markup at the rate of 1-Month KIBOR plus 2% per annum. The facility is upto September 28, 2024.

The Company has obtained Export Refinance Facility of Rs. 150 million (2023: Rs. 450 million) from a
commercial bank. The facility is secured by way of 1st pari passu charge of Rs. 733 million (2022: Rs. 733
million) on current and fixed assets (including land and building, plant and machinery) of the Company
inclusive of 25% margin located at Sangjani plant, District Islamabad. The facility carries mark-up at State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) policy rate minus 3.00% per annum (2023: SBP rate plus 1.00%). The facility is valid
upto September 28, 2024.

As of reporting date, the Company had unutilized facilities for short term borrowings available from various
banks amounting to Rs. 624.486 Million including FATR (2023: Rs. 705.948 million).

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000—

ACCRUED MARK-UP

- Short term borrowing 32,537 43,845
- Long term borrowing 6,051 10,212
- Lease liability 111 148

38,699 54,205

CURRENT MATURITY OF LONG TERM

FINANCING - Secured
Financing under SBP schemes

Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy 5.1 98,180 102,130

Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) 5.2 95,437 67,604
193,617 169,734

Other financing facilities

Term Finance Il 5.3 68,621 68,621
262,238 238,355

Cr,
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies
Contingent liability existing as at the reporting date

The Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) passed an order on August 27, 2009 and imposed a penalty
on all cement manufacturers of the country on the alleged ground of formation of cartel for marketing
arrangement. The amount of penalty imposed on the Company was Rs. 174.063 million. The Company
challenged the constitutionality of the Competition Act, 2010 before the Honorable Lahore High Court
(LHC) and the order dated August 27, 2009 passed by the CCP on merits.

The LHC vide its order dated October 26, 2020 dismissed the petitions filed by the Company together with
other petitioners and declared the competition law intra vires. The LHC, however, struck down the
constitution of Competition Appellate Tribunal (CAT) as being unconstitutional. The Judgment of the Lahore
High Court has been challenged by the Company as well as the CCP before the Supreme Court of Pakistan.
The Supreme Court has been pleased to grant leave in the petitions and have converted them in Civil
Appeals. The Appeals remain pending adjudication before the Supreme Court.

The constitution of CAT has also been challenged by the Company before the High Court of Sindh (SHC)
which has vide order dated January 02, 2018, been pleased to restrain CAT from passing any final order
in the Appeals filed against CCP’s order dated August 27, 2009. The interim order dated January 02, 2018
remains in the field and the matter is pending adjudication before the SHC.

In respect of Tax year 2015, the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) passed an order disallowing certain
expenses resulting in a demand of Rs.6.5m. The company challenged the impugned order before the
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending. According to the legal counsel Company has a good
arguable case. Therefore, no provision has been made for the said demand.

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

Commitments

As of the reporting date, the outstanding financial
commitments of the company were as follows:

-in respect of import of stores and spares 69,842 40,799

- Letter of guarantee in favour of Sui Northern Gas

Pipeline Limited (SNGPL) 110,000 110,000
179,842 150,799

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating Assets 14.1 2,370,613 2,358,969

Capital Work in Progress 14.2 140,903 -

Capital Spares 14.3 439,601 349,868
2,951,117 2,708,837
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14.1 Operating assets

Quarry Furniture,
Freehold Factory Non-factory Plant and transport fixtures & Motor Total
Land building building machinery equipments equipments Vehicles
Rupees in 000
As at June 30, 2022
Cost 225,923 327,715 243,635 4,532,491 131,860 72,527 80,143 5,614,294
Accumulated depreciation - (281,808) (123,236) (2,375,557) (124,110) (58,674) (70,488) (3,033,873)
225,923 45,907 120,399 2,156,934 7,750 13,853 9,655 2,580,421
Year ended June 30, 2023
Opening net book value 225,923 45,907 120,399 2,156,934 7,750 13,853 9,655 2,580,421
Additions during the year:
Transfer from CWIP - - - 132,417 - - - 132,417
Transfer from capital spares - - - 24,779 - 2,934 - 27,713
Transfer from Right of
use asset - - - - - - 2,503 2,503
Direct additions - - - 20,135 - 615 - 20,750
- - - 177,331 - 3,549 2,503 183,383
Disposals:
-Cost - - - - - - (4,526) (4,526)
-Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - 4,134 4,134
- - - - - - (392) (392)
Reclassification to
Investment Property (142,272) - - - - - - (142,272)
Depreciation for the year - (5,177) (8,511) (241,260) (684) (5,065) (1,474) (262,171)
Closing net book value 83,651 40,730 111,888 2,093,005 7,066 12,337 10,292 2,358,969
As at June 30, 2023
Cost 83,651 327,715 243,635 4,709,822 131,860 76,076 78,120 5,650,879
Accumulated depreciation - (286,985) (131,747) (2,616,817) (124,794) (63,739) (67,828) (3,291,910)
83,651 40,730 111,888 2,093,005 7,066 12,337 10,292 2,358,969
Year ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book value 83,651 40,730 111,888 2,093,005 7,066 12,337 10,292 2,358,969
Additions during the year:
Transfer from capital spares - - - 51,578 - 9,577 - 61,155
Direct additions - - - 54,082 - 1,508 135 55,725
- - - 105,660 - 11,085 135 116,880
Transfer from Right of
use asset
-Cost - - - - - - 38,958 38,958
-Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - (34,050) (34,050)
- - - - - - 4,908 4,908
Disposals:
-Cost - - - (21,834) - - (12,147) (33,981)
-Accumulated depreciation - - - 15,983 - - 9,920 25,903
- - - (5,851) - - (2,227) (8,078)
Depreciation for the year - (5,177) (8,305) (82,532) (684) (4,832) (536) (102,066)
Closing net book value 83,651 35,553 103,583 2,110,282 6,382 18,590 12,572 2,370,613
As at June 30, 2024
Cost 83,651 327,715 243,635 4,793,648 131,860 87,161 105,066 5,772,736
Accumulated depreciation - (292,162) (140,052) (2,683,366) (125,478) (68,571) (92,494) (3,402,123
83,651 35,553 103,583 2,110,282 6,382 18,590 12,572 2,370,613
Usefull life (in years) 21.5-23.5 21.5-23.5 25 8-10 3-10 5
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Note
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30
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2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000—
93,459 252,748
3,320 3,921
5,287 5,502
102,066 262,171

Freehold land represents 237.64 acres of land situated at Sangjiani Village Sangjiani, Islamabad on which
factory and non factory buildings are constructed. The property is utilized as manufacturing facility for the
production of cement.

Further, it comprises land of 1,598.33 sq. yds. situated at House # 339, west ridge 1, Peshawar road,
Rawalpindi. The property is utilized as marketing office of the Company.

Particulars of operating fixed assets having net book value exceeding Rs. 500,000 disposed off during the
year are as follows:

Particula Cost Accumulated Net book Sale Gain / (loss) Mode of Particulars of Rlationship
Depreciation Value proceeds Disposal buyers with purchaser
Burner 21,834,000 15,983,000 5,851,000 4,000,000 (1,851,000) Negotiation Deewan Cement Ltd None
Vehicle 2,595,000 1,323,450 1,271,550 2,000,000 728,450 Negotiation Abdul Samad Ex-Employee
Vehicle 6,936,704 6,243,034 693,670 5,450,000 4,756,330 Negotiation Syed Faraz Aijaz None
Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——
Capital work in progress
Opening balance - 126,682
Additions during the year
- Transfers from capital spares 14.3 84,799 2,900
- Direct additions 56,104 2,834
Transfer to operating fixed asset 140,903 5,734
- (132,416)
Balance as at June 30,2024 14.2.1 140,903 -
This represents capital expenditure being incurred for achieving further efficiencies.
Capital Spares
Opening Balance 349,868 360,797
Additions 235,687 19,684
585,555 380,481
Transfers to capital work in progress 14.2 (84,799) (2,900)
Transfers to operating fixed assets 14.1 (61,155) (27,713)
(145,954) (30,613)
Closing Balance 439,601 349,868
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Rented Leased
property in vehicles Total
Karachi
(Note 15.1) (Note 15.2)
As at June 30, 2022
Cost 69,636 103,217 172,853
Accumulated depreciation (14,495) (49,916) (64,411)
55,141 53,301 108,442
Movement during the year
ended June 30, 2023
Opening net book value 55,141 53,301 108,442
Disposal:
Cost - (25,030) (25,030)
Accumulated depreciation - 22,527 22,527
- (2,503) (2,503)
Depreciation for the year (13,927) (15,200) (29,127)
Closing net book value 41,214 35,598 76,812
As at June 30, 2023
Cost 69,636 78,187 147,823
Accumulated depreciation (28,422) (42,589) (71,011)
41,214 35,598 76,812
Movement during the year
ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book value 41,214 35,598 76,812
Vehicle transferred to operating assets
-Cost - (38,958) (38,958)
-Accumulated Depreciation - 34,050 34,050
- (4,908) (4,908)
Depreciation for the year (13,927) (11,729) (25,656)
Closing net book value 27,287 18,961 46,248
As at June 30, 2024
Cost 69,636 39,229 108,865
Accumulated depreciation (42,349) (20,268) (62,617)
27,287 18,961 46,248
Depreciation rate (per annum) 20% 20%

15.1 The terms and conditions of the lease contracts entered into for rented properties are as follows:

Particulars Rented property in Karachi
Lease agreement date 5-Mar-21

Lease commencement date 15-Jul-21

Initial contracted term of the lease 11 Months
Availability of extension option Yes

Assessed lease term 5 years

15.2 The terms and conditions of the lease contracts entered into for vehicles are as follows:
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16.

16.1

17.

17.1

Lease contract Availability First Last Total Rental Mark up Nuture of the Number of

no. Leasor name of extension | installment | installment number of payment leased assets the leased
option payable on | payable on installments frequency assets

122010500002 Askari Bank Limited No 29-Nov-20 29-Oct-25 60 Monthly 3 month KIBOR + 2% Motor Vehicles 1

122012500002 Askari Bank Limited No 21-Jan-21 21-Dec-25 60 Monthly 3 month KIBOR + 2% Motor Vehicles 3

122104500006 Askari Bank Limited No 23-Jul-21 23-Jun-26 60 Monthly 6 month KIBOR + 2% Motor Vehicles 8

122107500005 Askari Bank Limited No 30-Aug-21 30-Jul-26 60 Monthly 6 month KIBOR + 2% Motor Vehicles 1

122107500004 Askari Bank Limited No 30-Aug-21 30-Jul-26 60 Monthly 6 month KIBOR + 2% Motor Vehicles 1

Note 2024 2023

Rupees in ‘000—

Allocation of depreciation expense

Manufacturing costs 28.1.2 3,519 4,560
Administrative expenses 29 19,792 21,527
Distribution costs 30 2,346 3,040
25,657 29,127
INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Opening cost 102,260 -
Reclassification from Property, plant and equipment - 142,272
Disposal of freehold land during the year - (40,012)
Closing Cost 16.1 102,260 102,260

This represents cost of 124.625 Kanals land located at Thalian near Airport Avenue Road Rawalpindi. The
latest valuation of the property was carried out by an independent valuer namely M/s. K.G Traders Private
Limited on June 30, 2024, according to which the aggregate fair value and forced sale value of the plots
of land amounts to Rs. 312 million and Rs. 265.2 million respectively.

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

LONG TERM INVESTMENT
Unguoted equity securities

- Fecto Cement Nooriabad (Private) Limited 17.1 1,000 1,000
(subsidiary)
- Investment in Frontier Paper Products (Private) 17.2 226,800 300,591

Limited (related party)

Unguoted debt securities
Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) 17.3 99,920 99,920
327,720 401,511

Investment in Fecto Cement Nooriabad (Private) Limited - a subsidiary

2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of sharess) Rupees in ‘000——

100,000 100,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000 1,000

In February 2020, the Company got its new subsidiary company incorporated in the name and style of M/s.
Fecto Cement Nooriabad (Private) Limited ('FCNL'). The authorized and paid up capital of FCNL is Rs. 2
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million and Rs. 1 million, respectively, which is presently wholly owned by the Company. The principal
activity of FCNL is to produce and deal in all kinds of cement and its allied products. The registered office
of FCNL Plot # 60-C, Khayaban-Shahbaz, Phase-VI, Defense Housing Authority, Karachi-75500. Mr. Mohammad
Yasin Fecto, the majority shareholder and director of the Company, also serves on the Board of Directors
of FCNL.

By the reporting date, FCNL had not yet commenced its operations which was principally due to delay
evidenced in granting of mining lease by the regulatory authorities. However, the management of FCNL
has been endeavoring to finalize its ongoing negotiations with the concerned government officials and is
hopeful that the said license will be issued in due course of time.

In accordance with the provisions of section 228(1) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company would be
required to prepare, consolidated financial statements of the group (comprising the Company and the
aforementioned subsidiary company) for the year ended June 30, 2023. However, keeping in view the fact
that FCNL has not yet commenced its business operations and, at the reporting date, it had no material
assets or liabilities, the Company, under section 228(7) of the Companies Act, 2017, applied to the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for seeking exemption from the requirement to prepare
consolidated financial statements. The said exemption has been granted by the SECP vide its letter
SMD/PRDD/Comp/(2)/2021/63 dated July 12, 2024 issued to the Company.

As per unaudited financial statements of FCNL for the year ended June 30, 2024, as of the reporting date,
FCNL had cash balance held in a bank account, amounting to Rs. 1.394 million (2023: Rs. 1.175 million)
(mainly representing the initial capital injection made by the Company in the form of equity) and accrued
liabilities amounting to Rs. 0.20 million (2023: Rs. 0.08 million). Further, during the year ended June 30,
2024, FCNL earned mark-up on bank deposit amounting to Rs. 0.259 (2023: 0.166 million) and incurred
administrative and taxation expenses of Rs. 0.125 million (2023: Rs. 0.079 million) and Rs. 0.039 million
(2023: 0.025 million), respectively.

The unaudited financial statements of FCNL for the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, shall be
available for inspection at the registered office of the Company and shall be sent to the members on request

without any cost.

Investment in Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited - a related party

2024 2023 2024 2023

(Number ofshares) Rupees in ‘000 .............
15,000,000 15,000,000 Ordinary shares of
Rs. 10/- each - cost 150,000 150,000
Unrealized gain / (loss) on remeasurment

- Opening balance 150,591 179,850
- Loss recognized during the year (73,791) (29,259)
76,800 150,591
226,800 300,591

In 2019, the Company made an investment in 15 million unquoted ordinary shares of M/s. Frontier Papers
Products (Private) Limited (FPPL), its associated company in terms of section 2(4) of the Companies Act,
2017), at a par value of Rs. 10 each. This investment gives the Company 49.21% voting power in FPPL.
However, since Mr.Mohammad Yasin Fecto holds the remaining voting power (i.e. 50.79%) in FPPL and also
exercises control over the Company (by virtue of his majority shareholding in the Company), the Company
is not able to exercise significant influence over FPPL and, accordingly, has not applied the equity method
of accounting as described in the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures.




Annual Report 2023

17.2.2 In accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 Financial Instruments, the
Company has elected to designate the investment at fair value through other comprehensive income since
it is in the nature of a long-term strategic investment made with a view to further strengthen the existing
customer-supplier relationship with FPPL.

17.2.3 The Company as per its policy, carried out the valuation of the aforementioned investments. In this
connection, the valuation technique used by the Company was Discounted Free Cash Flow to Equity model
for business valuation. Assumptions and inputs used in the valuation technique mainly include risk-free
rate, equity risk premium, growth rate and projected rates of increase in revenues, other income and
expenses. According to such valuation, the fair value of the net assets of FPPL was determined to be Rs.
15.12 per share (2023: 20.04 per share).

17.2.4 During the year ended June 30, 2024, FPPL did not declare any dividends (2023: None).
17.3  Investment in Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)

This represents investment in 20,000 unsecured, privately placed Term Finance Certificates (TFCs), @ 6-
month KIBOR plus 1.85%, issued by M/s. Silk Bank Limited, in August 8th, 2007.

The investments in TFCs were initially designated as short-term in previous years, with the intention of
divestment. However, due to the presence of a lock-in clause and the prevailing uncertainty regarding
repayment upon maturity, they have consequently been reclassified as long-term investments.

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

18. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Long term deposits 18.1 10,101 10,101

18.1  This includes security deposits maintained with certain government authorities and suppliers / vendors
of the Company.

19. LONG TERM LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER

RECEIVABLE
Long term loan - -unsecured, considered good
Employees - interest free 4,342 5,095
Executives - interest free 19.1 1,005 1,289
5,347 6,384
Advance to software house 19.2 9,852 5,000
Advance to dealers - secured, considered good 500 3,700
Markup receivable on term finance certificates 19.3 & 24.2 27,735 -
43,434 15,084
Less: Current maturity shown under current assets 24 (3,308) (6,618)
40,126 8,466

19.1 The loans to executives and employees are in accordance with the terms of their employment. The maximum
aggregate amount due from executives of the Company (by reference to month-end balances) amounted
to Rs. 1.708 million (2023: Rs. 1.289 million).

19.2 This represents an advance provided to a software house in relation to implementation of a new ERP
system.
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As disclosed in note 25.2.1 to the financial statement for the year ended June 30, 2023, M/s. Silk Bank
Limited stopped the payments of markup on their TFCs as held by the Company due to the lock-in clause
28 of the Trust deed. Till the terms stipulated in said clause are not fulfilled by the Bank, it is not allowed
to make any payment in this regard. As a result of activation of said lock-in clause, the Company as a matter
of prudence, has reclassified the previously accrued markup from current to non-current and also has not
recognized the markup for the current year amounting to Rs. 23.775 million.

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——
STORES AND SPARES
Stores - in hand 667,729 839,743
-in transit 4,232 34,515
671,961 874,258
Spares 816,428 649,714
Provision against slow moving and obsolete spares (17,723) (15,000)
798,705 634,714
1,470,666 1,508,972
STOCK IN TRADE
Raw Material 1,247,943 1,052,464
Packing Material 68,930 33,788
1,316,873 1,086,252
Work-in-process 588,526 610,422
Finished goods 94,240 104,221
1,999,639 1,800,895
TRADE DEBTS - unsecured
Local receivables
Total trade debts outstanding - gross 479,890 147,615
Less: Provision for expected credit losses (1,110) (880)
478,780 146,735
SHORT TERM LOAN TO RELATED PARTY
Loan to Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited
Opening balance 70,895 25,395
Loan disbursed during the year - 74,500
Loan repaid during the year (50,905) (29,000)
19,990 70,895

In their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 01, 2018, the shareholders of the Company
resolved that an unsecured short term running finance facility (subject to the maximum limit of Rs. 100
million) be provided by the Company to M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited (FPPL), its related
party.

Further, as required by the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings)
Regulations, 2017, the rate of return on the above financing facility is the higher of the applicable KIBOR
rate and the borrowing cost of the Company.
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Maximum loan outstanding during the year with reference to month-end balances amounted to Rs. 70.895
million (2023: Rs. 99 million).

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS

AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

Advances 24.1 24,821 17,398

Other receivable - accrued markup 24.2 4,051 32,836

Deposit - margin against bank Guarantee 24.3 11,000 11,000

Current maturity of long term loans to employee 19 3,308 6,618

Prepayments 1,541 1,059
44,721 68,911

Advances

Advance to suppliers of goods 24,585 17,398

Others 236 -
24,821 17,398

Other receivable - accrued markup

Markup receivable on term finance certificates 19.3 - 27,735

Markup receivable on loan to associated company 4,051 5,101

4,051 32,836

Deposit - margin against bank guarantee

This represents 10 % (2023: 10%) margin given to Silk Bank Limited against the bank guarantee of Rs.110
million (2023: Rs. 110 million) issued in favour of Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited as security for the
payment of gas bills.

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Income tax refundable 21,442 76,233
Un-adjusted input sales tax carried forward 20,293 33,600
41,735 109,833

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

In hand 975 663

Cash at bank

With banks in saving & deposit accounts 26.1 & 45 191,708 173,523

With banks in current accounts 45 88,564 24,479
280,272 198,002
281,247 198,665

The return on these balances ranges from 17% to 19% (2023: 15% to 16% ) per annum on daily product
basis.
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SALES REVENUE - net

Revenue from Local Sales
Revenue from Export Sales

Revenue from Local Sales

Sales of goods to local customers - gross

Less: Trade Discount
Excise duty
Sales tax

Revenue from Export Sales

Sales of goods to foreign customers
Export Rebate

COST OF SALES

Opening stock of finished goods
Cost of goods manufactured

Closing stock of finished goods

Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing materials consumed
Conversion cost incurred

Change in work-in-process inventory:

Opening work-in-process
Closing work-in-process

Raw material consumed

Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

Note

27.1
27.2

28.1

28.1.1
28.1.2
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2024

2023

Rupees in ‘000—

10,767,088 8,432,393
141,030 249,790
10,908,118 8,682,183
14,857,636 11,414,098
(135,276) (114,447)
(1,425,537) (1,040,271)
(2,529,735) (1,826,987)
(4,090,548) (2,981,705)
10,767,088 8,432,393
141,030 249,485

- 305

141,030 249,790
104,221 31,777
9,468,572 8,442,207
9,572,793 8,473,984
(94,240) (104,221)
9,478,553 8,369,763
1,204,507 799,634
8,242,169 8,059,309
9,446,676 8,858,943
610,422 193,686
(588,526) (610,422)
21,896 (416,736)
9,468,572 8,442,207
1,086,252 1,068,720
1,435,128 817,166
2,521,380 1,885,886
(1,316,873) (1,086,252)
1,204,507 799,634
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Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

28.1.2 Conversion cost incurred

Fuel and power 28.1.2.1 6,951,199 6,797,693
Salaries, wages and benefits 28.1.2.2 696,179 588,952
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 14.1.1 93,459 252,748
Stores and spares consumed 272,013 225,741
Vehicle running expenses 65,424 57,259
Insurance 55,885 46,043
Repairs and maintenance 13,696 19,354
Loading charges 16,240 16,752
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 15.3 3,519 4,560
Other manufacturing overheads 74,555 50,207

8,242,169 8,059,309

28.1.2.1 Fuel and power

Coal Charges 4,738,022 5,086,757
Electricity Charges 2,061,194 1,576,648
Diesel Charges 118,707 99,104
Lubricant Charges 32,734 26,440
Others 542 8,744

6,951,199 6,797,693

28.1.2.2 This includes Company's contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 19.519 million (2023: Rs. 16.502

million).
29. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 29.1 212,331 192,683
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 15.3 19,792 21,527
Vehicles running expenses 20,661 20,351
Utilities 18,260 18,097
Legal and professional charges 21,098 13,129
Initial expenditure on new project 8,657 7,937
Donations 29.2 6,443 6,152
Repairs and maintenance 3,738 5,108
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 14.1.1 3,320 3,921
Traveling and conveyance 9,289 3,057
Communications 4,667 2,998
Printing and stationery 3,006 2,449
Rent, rates and taxes 1,336 2,162
Entertainment 2,400 2,072
Fees and subscription 2,387 1,778
Auditors' remuneration 29.3 2,200 1,500
Insurance 309 287
Miscellaneous 6,441 4,533

346,335 309,741

29.1 This includes Company's contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 6.921 million (2023: Rs. 6.993
million).
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29.2 None of the directors or their spouses have any interest in the donee institutions. There is no single party
to whom the donation exceeds the higher of 10% of the Company's total amount of donation expense
for the year or Rs. 1 million.

Note 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——
29.3 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 1,500 1,100
Half yearly review 500 300
Certifications for regulatory purposes 200 100
2,200 1,500
30. DISTRIBUTION COST
Salaries, wages and benefits 30.1 65,100 55,585
Marking fee 11,062 8,880
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 14.1.1 5,287 5,502
Vehicles running expenses 5,818 5,285
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 15.3 2,346 3,040
Printing and stationary 4,067 2,539
Fuel and power 3,518 2,472
Communications 2,040 1,782
Entertainment 1,932 1,640
Rent, rates and taxes 2,458 1,506
Export expenses 1,368 1,481
Repairs and maintenance 1,142 777
Spares and general items consumed 80 761
Traveling and conveyance 419 387
Insurance 223 167
Advertisement 99 87
Fees and subscription 56 -
Miscellaneous 123 673
107,138 92,564
30.1 This includes Company's contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 2.679 million (2023: Rs.2.362
million) .
31. FINANCE COST
Markup on short term borrowings:
- Running finance 106,814 113,075
- Cash finance 21,866 36,364
- Export Refinance Scheme 14,189 8,150
- Finance against Trust Receipt (FATR) - -
142,869 157,589
Markup on long term borrowing
SBP Refinance Scheme for TERF I 5.2 51,093 49,841
SBP Refinance Scheme for Renewable Energy 5.1 37,250 40,721
Markup on Term Finance Il 31,152 37,096
SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries - 2,580
119,495 130,238
Markup on leases 6 9,931 10,943
Bank commission and charges 3,879 4,433
276,174 303,203

'@ FECTO CEMENT LIMITED




32.

33.

33.1

34.

35.

35.1

OTHER EXPENSES

Loss on sale of obsolete bags
Provision for expected credit loss

Provision against slow moving and obsolete spares

OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of investment property

Scrap sales

Amortization of deferred government grant
Markup income

Insurance Claim

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets
Miscellaneous

Markup income
Markup on term finance certificates

Markup on loan to associated company
Markup on bank deposits

LEVIES

Excess of minimum tax over normal tax
Income tax - Final tax regime

Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund

TAXATION

Current
Prior

Deferred

33.1

19.3

251

251
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2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit before taxation

FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

- 5,315
230 -
2,723
2,953 5,315
- 77,774
22,320 46,615
44,007 46,610
21,127 34,472
- 16,870
3,883 935
- 2,198
91,337 225,474
- 18,109
10,774 12,586
10,353 3,777
21,127 34,472
(Restated)
2024 2023
Rupees in '000'
77,213 106,419
1,398 2,494
78,611 108,913
39,563 -
118,174 108,913
123,836 -
5,978 (9,622)
129,814 (9,622)
222,991 (138,975)
352,805 (148,597)
77




35.2

36.

36.1

36.2

37.

38.
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2024
-- Rupees in thousand --

Profit before levies and taxation 788,302
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2023: 29%) 228,608
Tax effects of:
- permanent difference (4,282)
- income subject to taxation under final tax regime (2,033)
- super tax 65,917
- excess of minimum tax over corporate tax 77,213
- prior tax 5,978
- others (18,596)

352,805

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up to, and including, the tax year 2023.
Tax returns filed by the Company are deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 unless selected for re-assessment or audit by the taxation authorities. However, at any
time during a period of five years from the date of filing of a return, the taxation authorities may select
an income tax return filed by the Company for the purpose of re-assessment.

2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

EARNING / (LOSS) PER SHARE
Earnings / (loss) per share / basic

Profit / (loss) after taxation 317,323 (133,245)

Numbers in '000'

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 50,160 50,160
Rupees
Earnings / (loss) per share - basic 6.33 (2.66)

Diluted earnings / (loss) per share

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning /(loss) per share of the Company, since there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023. 2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 25 281,247 198,665
Short term borrowings - running finance 10 (685,513) (722,332)
(404,266) (523,667)

SEGMENT INFORMATION
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment i.e. sale and
manufacturing of cement. The entity-wide disclosures required by IFRS 8 'Operating Segments' are given

below:

(a) Revenue from sale of cement represents 100% (2023 : 100%) of the total revenue of the Compamg.,o
PN




39.

39.1

39.2

40.

41.
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(b) 99% (2023: 98%) gross sales of the Company were made to customers based in Pakistan.

(c) AsatlJune 30,2024 and June 30, 2023 all non-current assets of the Company were located in Pakistan.

(d) Revenue earned from two major customer having sales excluding sales tax and federal excise duty
of more than 10% of total sales amounted to Rs. 2,698.56 million (2023: Rs. 1,935.04 million). The
major customer resides in Pakistan.

REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements in respect of remuneration, including
benefits, to the Chief Executive Officer, Directors and executives of the Company are given below:

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Non- Non-
Chief Executive Executive Executives Chief Executive  executive Executive
Executive Director Director Executive Director Director

Rupees in '000'

Managerial remuneration 40,356 - - 270,813 37,479 - - 208,375
Retirement benefits - - - 1,520 - - 12,568
Reimbursable perquisites 2,284 - 15,162 2,161 - - 12,008
Meeting fee - - 340 - - - 155 -
42,640 - 340 287,495 39,640 - 155 232,951
Number of persons 1 - 6 62 1 - 6 45

The Chief Executive, and certain Executives are provided with the use of Company maintained cars and
reimbursement of certain expenses to the extent of their entitlement.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of Frontier Papers Products (Private) Limited, Fecto Cement Nooriabad
(Private) Limited key management personnel of the Company and directors and their close family members
and staff provident fund. Transactions with related parties during the year other than those disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements are as follows:

June 30
Name of the related party Basis of relationship Particulars 2024 2023
with the party Rupees
Purchases made during the year 743,553 495,247
Payments made during the year 715,900 489,928
Payable against purchases 75,443 47,790
Frontier Paper Products Associated Loan disbursed during the year - 74,500
(Private) Limited Company Loan repaid during the year 50,905 29,000
Interest charged on loan 10,774 12,586
Interest outstanding at year end 4,050 5,101
Loan outstanding at the end of the year 19,990 70,895
Staff retirement benefit plan -  Other related party Contribution for the year 29,120 25,856
Provident fund Balance payable at year end 5,351 5,157

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk analysis

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its
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use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk
41.1.1  Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation.
A financial asset is regarded as credit impaired as and when it falls under the definition of a 'defaulted'
financial asset. For the Company’s internal credit management purposes, a financial asset is considered
as defaulted when it is past due for 90 days or more.
The Company writes off a defaulted financial asset when there remains no reasonable probability of
recovering the carrying amount of the asset through available means.
Maximum exposure to credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
amount exposure amount exposure
Rupees in 000
At amortised cost
- Long term deposits 10,101 10,101 10,101 10,101
-Long term loans and other receivable 33,082 33,082 6,384 6,384
-Trade debts (@) 478,780 478,780 146,735 146,735
-Long term investment -TFCs 99,920 99,920 99,920 99,920
-Short term loan to a related party 19,990 19,990 70,895 70,895
-Loans, deposits and other receivable 18,359 18,359 50,453 50,453
-Bank balances (b) 280,272 280,272 198,002 198,002
940,504 940,504 582,490 582,490
Note (a) - Credit risk exposure on trade debts
To reduce the exposure to credit risk the Company has developed a policy of obtaining advance payments
from its customers. Except for customers relating to the Government and certain small and medium sized
enterprises, the management strictly adheres to this policy. For any balances receivable from such small
and medium sized enterprises, the management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards
them and makes provisions against those balances considered doubtful of recovery.
As of the reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade debts was as follows:
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Gross carrying Provision for Gross Provision for
amount expected carrying expected
credit amount credit
losses losses
1-90 days 463,438 - 145,875 -
More than 90 days 16,452 1,110 1,740 3 880
479,890 1,110 147,615 880

- '@ FECTO CEMENT LIMITED
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Note (b) - Credit risk exposure on bank balances

The Company's credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably
high credit ratings. As of the reporting date, the external credit ratings of the Company's bankers were
as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

Short term rating

AAA - 149,301
AA+ - 39,763
Al+ 237,243 -
A-1+ 10,203 -
Al 25,712 -
A-2 10 -
A-1 7,104 -
AA - 78
A - 7,525
A+ - 1,320
A- - 15
280,272 198,002

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into
with the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments
affecting a particular industry. As of the reporting date, the Company was exposed to the following
concentrations of credit risk:

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Total % of total Total % of toal
exposure Concentration exposure exposure Concentration exposure
---- (Rupees in ‘000’)

Trade debts 478,780 418,785 87% 146,735 82,012 56%
Long term investment 99,920 99,920 100% 99,920 99,920 100%
Short term loan to a
related party 19,990 19,990 100% 70,895 70,895 100%
Bank balances 280,272 262,222 94% 198,002 186,147 94%
800,917 438,974

41.1.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected
or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The following are the
contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments:
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June 30, 2024
Carrying Contractual Six months Six to twelve  Oneto five  More than
amount cash flows or less months years five years

---- (Rupees in ‘000’)

Long term financing 940,546 1,245,161 147,211 141,028 844,381 112,541
Lease liability 39,620 46,463 5,597 22,859 18,007 -
Short term borrowings
- secured 735,513 735,513 735,513 - - -
Accrued markup 38,699 38,699 38,699 - - -
Trade and other payables 1,422,058 1,422,058 1,422,058 - - -
3,176,436 3,487,894 2,349,078 163,887 862,388 112,541
June 30, 2023
Carrying Contractual Six months Six to twelve  Oneto five  More than
amount cash flows or less months years five years

---- (Rupees in ‘000’)

Long term financing 1,098,996 1,529,996 128,840 154,024 1,050,233 196,899
Lease liability 76,298 93,190 21,991 11,199 60,000 -
Short term borrowings
- secured 954,052 954,052 954,052 - - -
Accrued markup 54,205 54,205 54,205 - - -
Trade and other payables 844,990 844,990 844,990 - - -
3,028,541 3,476,433 2,004,078 165,223 1,110,233 196,899

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis
of mark-up rates effective as at June 30, 2024 (and includes both principal and interest payable thereon).

41.1.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk.

(a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and
payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. As of the reporting period the Company
was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and
long term borrowings from banks and term deposits with banks. At the balance sheet date the interest
rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows:
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2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——

Financial assets

Variable rate instruments

Bank balances - saving and deposit accounts 191,708 99,509
Short term loan to related party 19,990 70,895
Long term investment - TFCs 99,920 99,920

Financial liabilities

Variable rate instruments

Long term financing - Term Finance Il 101,441 170,062
Lease liability - Vehicles 17,281 30,624
Short term borrowings - secured 735,513 954,052

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the profit or loss
and equity of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased/increase loss
before tax by Rs. 5.43 million (2023: Rs. 8.84 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for last
year.

(c) Price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in the market prices (other than those arising from interest/ mark up rate
risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instruments traded in the market. As
at June 30, 2024, the Company was not exposed any price risk.

2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000——
42. Financial instruments by categories
42.1 Financial assets:
At amortized cost
Long term investment in subsidiary 1,000 1,000
Long term deposits 10,101 10,101
Long term loans and advances 30,274 3,466
Long term investment in TFCs 99,920 99,920
Trade debts 478,780 146,735
Short term loan to a related party 19,990 70,895
Loans, advances, deposits and other receivables 18,359 50,453
Cash and bank balances 281,247 198,665

939,671 581,235
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2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000—

At fair value through other comprehensive income
Long term investment in associated company 226,800 300,591

Financial liabilities:

At amortized cost

Long term financing - secured 940,546 1,098,996
Lease liability 39,620 76,298
Trade and other payables 1,422,058 844,990
Short term borrowings 735,513 954,052
Accrued mark-up 38,699 54,205

3,176,436 3,028,541

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise
between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate
their fair values.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

Fair values of assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For all other
assets the Company determines fair values using valuation techniques unless the instruments do not
have a market \ quoted price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Valuation techniques used by the Company include discounted cash flow model. Assumptions and inputs
used in the valuation technique mainly include risk-free rate, equity risk premium, long term growth rate
and projected rates of increase in revenues, cost of sales, other income and expenses. The objective of
valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by market participants acting at arm's
length.

Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires significant unobservable
inputs and a higher degree of judgment and estimation in the determination of fair value. Judgment and
estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used, determination
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of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate
discount rates, etc.

The table below analyses assets measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period by the level
in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:

June 30, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Rupees in '000'

Investment in privately placed TFCs - 99,920 -

Investment in unquoted ordinary shares of
M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited - - 226,800

June 30, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Rupees in '000'

Investment in privately placed TFCs - 99,920 -

Investment in unquoted ordinary shares of
M/s. Frontier Paper Products (Private) Limited - - 300,591

44, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The management's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The management closely monitors
the return on capital along with the level of distributions to ordinary shareholders. The management
seeks to maintain a balance between higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirement.
Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Company manages as capital:

2024 2023
Rupees in ‘000—

Borrowing:

Long term financing 40,546 1,098,996

Short term borrowings 735,513 954,052
1,676,059 2,053,048

Shareholders' equity:

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 501,600 501,600

General reserves 550,000 550,000

Unappropriated profit 2,755,559 2,438,236
3,807,159 3,489,836

Total capital managed by the Company 5,483,218 5,542,884

45. RECLASSIFICATION OF CORRESPONDING FIGURES

In these financial statements, the following corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified,
for the purposes of comparison and better presentation.
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Reclassified from component Reclassified to component Note Rupees
Cash and Bank Cash and Bank 26 74,014
(current account) (saving account)

46. GENERAL
46.1 Investments made by the provident fund

The investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2024 2023
Matric Tons
46.2  Plant capacity and actual production
Production capacity - Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Production capacity - Clinker 900,000 900,000
Actual production - Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC) 724,209 646,530
Actual production - Clinker 651,048 632,116

46.2.1 The present normal capacity of the Company's manufacturing facility is to produce 3,000 metric tons of
Clinker per day. The above disclosed annual production capacity of 900,000 metric tons of Clinker is based
on 300 operating days a year.

46.2.2 Actual production is less than the installed capacity due to planned maintenance shut down and gap
between market demand and supply.

46.3 Number of employees
2024 2023

Rupees in ‘000——

Total number of employees as at June 30 330 336

Average number of employees during the year 333 332

46.4 Date of authorization of the financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in their
meeting held on 07th October, 2024.

46.5 Level of rounding

Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.
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FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary

The Fecto Cement Limited

Plot # 60-C, Khayaban-e-Shahbaz
Phase VI, Defence Housing Authority
Karachi-75500

IfVe

of (full address)

being member of FECTO CEMENT LIMITED holding ordinary shares as
per Share Register Folio No. andfor CDC Participant [.D. No. and
Sub-Account No. hereby appoint

of (full address)

or failing him/her

of (full address) who is

also a member of Fecto Cement Limited, as my/our proxy in myfour absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our be-
half at annual general meeting of the company to be held on Monday, October 28, 2024 at 12:00 noon and / or any

adjournment thereof.

Signature this year 2024.
(day) (date, month)
Witnesses:
1 Signature:
Name
Address Signature
CNIC No.
Signature of members
should match with the
P Signature: specimen signature
registered with the
Name company
Address
CNIC No.
Important:
1. In order to be effective, this form of proxy duly completed, stamped, signed and withessed along with power of

attorney, or other instruments (if any), must be deposited at the registered office of the company at Plot # 60-C,
Khayaban-e-Shahbaz, Phase VI, Defence Housing Authority, Karachi-75500 at least 48 hours before the time of the
meeting.

2 If 2 member appoints more than one proxy and more than one form of proxy are deposited by a member with the
company, all such forms of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

3. In case of proxy for an individual beneficial owner of shares from CDC, attested copies of beneficial owner’%
computerized national identity card (CNIC) or passport, account and participant's ID numbers must be deposited
along with the form of proxy. In case of proxy for representative of corporate members from CDC, board of directors’
resolution and power of attorney and the specimen signature of the nominee must be deposited along with the form
of proxy. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or passport at the time of meeting

<ECT,
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FECTO CEMENT LIMITED

Plat # 60-C, Khayaban-e-Shahbaz,
Phase V1, Defence Housing Authority,
Karachi-75500, Pakistan

Wiebsite: www.lectoproup.com
Phone Nos.(+ 9221 35243921-24
Fax: (+9221) 35248925



